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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of Moiselle
International Holdings Limited (“Moiselle” or the “Company”), |
present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries (which
are collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2022 (the “Year”).

MARKET OVERVIEW

The resurgence of the novel coronavirus pneumonia pandemic
(“Covid-19”) in Hong Kong and Mainland China in the second
half of the financial Year of Moiselle dashed earlier hopes for a
sooner, full recovery in the fashion apparel retailing sector. In
Hong Kong, where Moiselle derived about 42% of its revenue, the
gradual recovery in the retail sector during the respite afforded by
the easing of the disease in the first nine months of the financial
year was dampened by the massive pandemic outbreak in
February and March of 2022. The operating environment became
more difficult as the government tightened anti-pandemic
measures in response to the upsurge in the number of confirmed
cases of Covid-19 from January to March of 2022. Such measures
included temporary suspension of business or the shortening of
opening hours for eateries, retail shops and entertainment
premises and the stringent quarantine requirements for inbound
travellers. According to Hong Kong Tourism Board quoting the
data from the Immigration Department of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“HKSAR”), total visitor arrivals in the city
plunged by 97.4% in 2021. As a result, the business of retailers
and restaurants was dominated by the local customers. According
to the Census and Statistics Department of the HKSAR, the value
of retail sales of wearing apparel at the retail outlets in the city
rebounded by approximately 22.6% to HK$32.5 billion in 2021,
in contrast to a sharp fall of approximately 41.3% to about
HK$26.51 billion in 2020. In Mainland China, the resurgence of
the pandemic had affected the economy and thus dampened the
consumer sentiment. Although the value of retail of apparel,
shoes, headwear and knitted products in the country rebounded
by 12.7% to approximately RMB1.38 trillion in 2021 following a
6.6% drop in 2020, it was only 2.22% higher than the
approximately RMB1.35 trillion in 2019 (source: National Bureau

of Statistics of the People’s Republic of China).
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Chairman’s Statement

The fashion apparel industry had undergone fundamental
changes in the past several years. One of them is the emergence
of the younger generation of consumers who prefer on-trend
fashion apparel to the classic and elegant one. A fashion apparel
design and retailing firm which has long been positioned as a
brand for niches in the high-end and upper-middle markets has
to orient itself more towards the market for unique and on-trend
fashion in order to remain competitive. Other fundamental
changes in the industry are the increasing popularity of
electronic commerce and consumers’ growing reliance on
internet, especially social media, for information about fashion
apparel and for shopping for it. Specifically, the pandemic that
had been raging for more than two years had compelled the
governments around the world to continue enforcing social
distancing measures which have only served to accelerate the
growing trend of electronic commerce. Developing electronic

commerce has been the way forward for the industry.

RESULTS

Moiselle mainly engages in retailing women’s fashion apparel to
high-end and upper-middle markets but is also gearing more
towards the design and sale of on-trend apparel targeted at the
younger generation of customers. For the Year, its loss widened
by 76% to HK$41 million, mainly due to the impact of the
pandemic on business, the decrease in or even absence of both
government subsidies and rent concessions as well as the much
smaller appreciation in the total value of the Company’s
investment properties in a revaluation. For instance, the Hong
Kong government stopped granting subsidies during the Year
because it had expected a recovery in business, only that the
hopes were later dashed by the massive outbreak of the
pandemic in the city in February and March of 2022. In the
previous financial year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Previous
Financial Year”), the Group had been granted one-off financial
assistance from the Hong Kong government that was aimed at
helping businesses get through the difficulties caused by the
pandemic. In addition, the Company’s investment properties
appreciated much less in total value for the Year in the
revaluation done in March 2022 when the massive pandemic
outbreak seriously dampened the prospect for business and thus

affected the valuation of such properties.
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The uneven performances of the Group’s operations in various
geographical markets amid the pandemic resulted in a 9%
increase in revenue to HK$139 million for the Year. Overall, the
higher growth in the Group’s revenue in the first half of the Year
amid the easing of the pandemic was partly offset by the
worsening sales performance in the second half of the Year
when the massive outbreak of the disease suddenly occurred in
February and March of 2022 in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

The Group’s operations in Hong Kong accounted for 42% of its
revenue while those in Mainland China contributed to 31%.
Operations in Macau, Taiwan and Singapore together made up
27% of the Group’s revenue. Gross profit margin increased from

the 68% for the Previous Financial Year to 70% for the Year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group forged ahead with the business
transformation initiatives that it had adopted in the past several
years to cope with the fundamental changes in the market and
the complicated and volatile business environment. They
included the repositioning of its house brand MOISELLE, the
development of electronic commerce and the rationalization of

the network of its retail stores.

To adapt itself to a growing predominance of a younger
generation of consumers in the customer base, the Group has
repositioned its major house brand MOISELLE as a brand that
accentuates the beauty of Asian women’s silhouette through two
fashion lines, namely the classic and elegant fashion apparel on
the one hand and the on-trend and unique fashion apparel that
projects a youthful image on the other hand since the Previous
Financial Year. The Group geared its products more towards
young customers who increasingly predominated in the fashion
apparel market. For instance, it increased the portion of
mid-range, on-trend and unique fashion apparel from about 30%
in the financial year ended 31 March 2020 to about 50% of the
total number of stock keeping units (“SKU”) for both the
Previous Financial Year and the Year. In the Previous Financial

Year, the Group invented a theme of marketing its seasonal

Annual Report 2022 4 4 #t



BEEMEBREBE ARG EARRFIMERE - ERE
T EZHRERIFNRSEERSE  FAEEHIRELE
ARHER AHSEHRTEGE Il TREIA
BERTSMHERNGEHRE -BEBMS  AKEEMNE
RERMBERNEREE FEHFEREFRFESHRILNER

Df
o

IIP

2 B
EC I
7’0_

AEHETEXRASGERMEEEURBEMREEHBER
EREENGEE  AEERAFEHEMRES FHHES
WER - R-_T-—FLtA AEERHEFBHSEM
CONZEPT ¥ #Y¥E » ZIEZEm.d.m.s. ~ GERMAIN % &l
BEBRIANCASTER 2EMm - BB EAREBEAUE
ERANRzFARERER TERIEBAREER
FE2FE-—REEE - EN-_Z_ZFtAE F£5H
AHEBERHRERA LTS CEEENELERER
EHMOISELLE B - RPEIR  AEBRARFEL¥F
BHES-EMALBYRLELTEERBERES
FREEREANZETEREFERBHESERN=E &
thREAEREMECEEMETR ENINEENSFEH
HIEVIP.com* U RSB —BRTHE BRI RE - ﬁi
HEREHERALFATHASE 2 FRERRIES
BEYREFHRPTREEZE - 1 $Elwﬁﬂ&mm
B RLE (R #8 FIONnTheListMShopify 25 /W R 48 L B8 ¥ 48 3 3&
CEETERAE . CREEYREAEER LEEEN
BE REFEMAAN70%  HEAEEWRZRI0%A L -

Annual Report 2022 42 ¥4 #

BV iR

Chairman’s Statement

collection which was about manifesting the wearers’
personalities and self-awakening. The concept is summed up in
a slogan “C’est MOI, MOISELLE” (“BFtRFFF" in Chinese). The
Group also adapted its products to the situation of the pandemic
by introducing fashion apparel of simpler design and of
antibacterial, washable or inexpensive material to the market as
more people worked from home and were more conscious of
hygiene. Overall, it broadened both the product range and price
range to better meet the more varied wants and needs of the

customers.

In response to the growing popularity of electronic commerce
and the increasing use of internet for obtaining information
about fashion trends, the Group continued to step up the
development of its electronic commerce business during the
Year. In July of 2021, the Group launched a website for its Hong
Kong-based concept store, M CONZEPT, which retails the
diffusion lines under such brands as m.d.m.s., GERMAIN and
LANCASTER. The move would enable the Group to run its
business more cost-effectively and to reach out more easily to
the younger generation of consumers, who increasingly
predominate in the customer base. This followed the earlier
opening of the Group’s own online platform for the marketing
and sales of its MOISELLE products on its own website for its
Hong Kong operations at the end of July 2020. In Mainland
China, the Group formed an alliance with one more local online
shopping website operator, CloudHappy Mall (“EE&H" in
Chinese), during the first half of the Year, maintaining the total
number of its electronic commerce business partners in the
country at three. The other two are electronic commerce website
VIP.com, which specializes in online discount sales and is
operated by Vipshop (“MEfE” in Chinese) and Tmall, another
popular online shopping website. Such online platforms for sales
and marketing can be combined with the Group’s mobile
phone-enabled application to build up a customer base and
carry out precision marketing. Furthermore, the Group also
conducted short-term cooperation with two other online
shopping website operators such as OnTheList which specializes
in flash sales and Shopify. All these contributed to the growth in
the Group’s online sales which surged by about 70% in the Year

and accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s revenue.
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In view of the growing influence of electronic commerce and the
difficulties of running physical stores amid the pandemic, the
Group has adjusted its strategy for running its store network. It
has decided to maintain its business presence in its various
geographical markets to an optimal minimum - it will no longer
open as many stores as before in the traditional large shopping
malls, but will maintain one store in each of the Mainland China
cities where it operates, and will rent shop spaces on short
leases which offer the Group more flexibility in adjusting the
scale of its store network. In addition, the Group continued to
rationalize its retail network by closing down some
underperforming stores and opening new ones in places with
good prospect, negotiated for rent concessions for shop spaces,
and had enhanced the shopping experience at its stores by
incorporating such elements as environmental awareness, quality

lifestyle and art into the interior decoration.

OUTLOOK

Although hopes for an earlier, full recovery in the fashion
apparel retailing sector have been dashed by the massive
outbreak of the pandemic in Hong Kong in the first quarter of
2022, the sales performance of the Group’s stores in the city
somewhat improved in May and June after the HKSAR
government relaxed anti-pandemic measures in April. Having
undergone the trying times of the pandemic that has been raging
for more than two and a half years, we believe that people can
ultimately solve problems so we remain confident about the
future. The economy of most of the geographical markets where
the Group operates has slowed down because of the pandemic
but people there will still spend as long as the economy
stabilizes, even at a lower growth rate. The key to operating in
such a business environment is adapting to the changes in both
consumer preferences and consumption patterns. The Group has
decided to adjust its strategy for running its store network by
keeping it to an optimal minimum and, at the same time, to step
up the development of its electronic commerce business, which
is a cost-effective means to conduct sales and marketing. The
Group will take out short leases on shop spaces so that it can
adjust the scale of its store network more flexibly. Meanwhile, it

will seek to cooperate with more online shopping platform

Annual Report 2022 4 4 #t
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operators to boost its online sales. The Group also plans to hire
some key opinion leaders to conduct livestreaming e-commerce
on behalf of it to increase its brand awareness and help boost
sales. The Group will also press on with the repositioning of its
major house brand MOISELLE to cater for the preferences of a

younger generation of customers.

All these measures are aimed at enhancing the Group’s
competitive strength and adaptability to the changes in the
market. The Group will monitor closely the economic conditions
and fashion trends in the markets and may adjust the above

plans accordingly.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all our
shareholders and our fellow business partners for their support,
and our management and staff for their hard work and

dedication to the Group during the Year.

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Targeting the markets for luxurious and mid-range apparel, the
Group operates such house brands as MOISELLE, m.d.m.s.,
CERMAIN and Rosamund MOISELLE, while engaging in
distributorship for international brand LANCASTER. Each of the
brands has its own distinctive consumer base and is being
developed separately by the Group’s dedicated and talented
designer teams for house brands. The Group retails its products
under the various brands at stores in prime locations. As at 31
March 2022, the Group had 38 stores and counters in Hong
Kong, first- and second-tier cities of Mainland China, Macau and
Taiwan, down from 47 as at 31 March 2021. It closed some
underperforming stores but also opened some stores in places

with good prospect to rationalize its network of stores.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS BY LOCATION

Operations in Hong Kong

Revenue from the Group’s operations in Hong Kong rebounded
by 6% to HK$58,552,000 for the Year against the about 43%
drop in the financial year ended 31 March 2021 (the “Previous
Financial Year”). The growth was mainly due to the year-on-year
growth of 17% in revenue in the first half of the Year when the
local customers were willing to go shopping at physical stores
after the pandemic had been largely brought under control.
However, the rebound was dampened in the second half of the
Year by the massive outbreak of the pandemic in February and
March of 2022.

To cope with the volatile business environment, the Group
stepped up the development of its cost-effective electronic
commerce business by launching a website in July 2021 for its
Hong Kong-based concept store, M CONZEPT, which retails the
diffusion lines. This followed the earlier opening of the Group’s
own online platform for the marketing and sales of its MOISELLE
products on its own website for its Hong Kong operations at the
end of July 2020. It also conducted short-term cooperation with
two online shopping website operators such as OnThelList which

specializes in flash sales and Shopify to boost sales.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group continued rationalizing its store network in the city
by opening stores in locations with good prospect - it opened
one M CONZEPT store on a six-month lease at a shopping mall
called MOKO at a multicomplex named Grand Century Place in
Mong Kok in December 2021 to test water and opened one
MOISELLE store at New Town Plaza in Shatin in October 2021.
To seek help in dealing with the difficult operating environment,
the Group also negotiated for rent concessions with some
landlords for some shop spaces and applied to the HKSAR
government for subsidies under the second round of the

Employment Support Scheme, pending the results.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group operated 8 MOISELLE, 2
m.d.m.s., 2 LANCASTER and 3 M CONZEPT retail stores as well
as one outlet (As at 31 March 2021, the Group operated 6
MOISELLE, 2 m.d.m.s., 3 LANCASTER and 2 M CONZEPT retail

stores as well as one outlet).

Operations in Mainland China

Revenue from the Group’s operations in Mainland China
increased by 6% to HK$42,914,000 during the Year,
decelerating from the year-on-year 17% rebound in the first half
of the Year as the pandemic affected the country’s economy and
thus dampened the consumer sentiment. To capitalize on the
growing trend of online shopping and adapt to the complicated
and volatile business environment of the country, the Group
forged ahead with the development of its electronic commerce
operations and the rationalization of its store network there. The
Group formed an alliance with one more local online shopping
website operator, CloudHappy Mall (“ ZEE# " in Chinese),
during the first half of the Year, maintaining the total number of
its electronic commerce business partners in the country at
three. The other two are electronic commerce website VIP.com,
which specializes in online discount sales and is operated by

Vipshop ("M mE "

in Chinese) and Tmall, another popular
online shopping website. It also continued to rationalize its
retail network by closing down two underperforming stores,

including one in Shanghai and one in Hangzhou during the
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second half of the Year and opened one new store in Dalian.
Rents for shop spaces generally decreased compared to those in
the years 2016 and 2017. The Group also continued with the
effort to reduce the cost of renting shop spaces. Under the
Group’s lease agreements with some landlords at some of its
stores, the rents were charged as certain percentages of the
revenue from sales. This made it easier for the Group to sustain

the retail business at the brick-and-mortar stores.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group operated 10 MOISELLE retail
stores in the country (As at 31 March 2021, the Group operated
14 MOISELLE, 2 M CONZEPT and 1 LANCASTER retail stores in

the country).

Operations in Macau

For the Year, turnover at the Group’s operations in Macau
rebounded by 50% to HK$22,095,000 as the reopening of the
city’s border with Mainland China revived business. The growth
was in sharp contrast with the 57% plunge in sales in the
Previous Financial Year when the operations there had been
seriously affected by the pandemic. As at 31 March 2022, the
Group operated three shops at the Venetian Macao Resort Hotel
and one shop at the Parisian Macao Hotel, including 1 M
CONZEPT, 1 MOISELLE, 1 m.d.m.s. and 1 LANCASTER retail
stores in the city (As at 31 March 2021: 1 M CONZEPT, 1
MOISELLE, 1 m.d.m.s. and 1 LANCASTER retail stores).

Operations in Taiwan

Revenue at the Group’s operations in Taiwan decreased by 9%
to approximately HK$12,967,000, which accounted for about
9% of the Group’s revenue for the Year. The Group operated 5
MOISELLE and 2 LANCASTER retail stores as well as one outlet
as at 31 March 2022 in Taiwan (As at 31 March 2021: 5
MOISELLE and 3 LANCASTER retail stores as well as 2 outlets).

Annual Report 2022 4 4 #t
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Operations in Singapore

Revenue at the Group’s business in Singapore decreased by 19%
during the Year due to reduced retail spaces as compared to
those in the Previous Financial Year when business had been hit
hard by the pandemic. The Group closed all its operations in the
country at the end of October 2021 upon the expiry of leases on
shop spaces as it could not find any suitable locations for
running stores at reasonable rents (As at 31 March 2021: 1
MOISELLE and T LANCASTER retail stores).

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overview

The Group’s turnover increased by approximately 9% to
approximately HK$138,526,000 (2021: HK$127,283,000) during
the year ended 31 March 2022 as compared with 2021. The
revenue earned from Hong Kong segment increased by
approximately 6% to approximately HK$58,552,000 (2021:
HK$55,305,000). The relaxation of government measures had
contributed to increase in revenue of the segment under
improved traffic of customers at all points of sales. The segment
contributed to 42% (2021: 43%) of the Group's total revenue.

The revenue of the segment outside Hong Kong increased by
approximately 11% to approximately HK$79,974,000 (2021:
HK$71,978,000) during the year ended 31 March 2022 mainly
due to improved performance in Macau and the Mainland
China. The segment contribution maintained at 58% (2021:

57%) which was relatively stable.
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During the year, the Group’s gross profit margin was
approximately 69.7%, as compared to 68.3% of the previous
year. Slight increase in gross profit margin reflected the stable
business with certain discounted sales and promotion activities
during the financial year. Operating expenses for the year ended
31 March 2022 totaled approximately HK$167,245,000,
compared to approximately HK$160,375,000 for 2021,
increased by approximately 4%. Although the management had
continued to conduct various measures in stringent cost
management to counteract high operating expenses, mainly staff
costs and rental expenses, the Group suffered an operating loss
of HK$44,469,000 (2021: HK$29,078,000).

The loss attributable to the equity shareholders for the year
ended 31 March 2022 was approximately HK$40,718,000
(2021: HK$22,751,000), increased in line with the increase in

operating loss.

Liquidity and financial resources

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group financed its
operations with internally generated cash flows and bank
borrowings. The Group adopts a prudent financial policy such
that it can meet the financial obligations when they fall due and
maintain a sufficient operating fund for the development of the
Group's business. At the end of the financial year, the Group’s
aggregate bank deposits and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$14 million (2021: HK$18 million). Cash and
bank deposits were held mainly in Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. The Group has foreign operations and certain of its
net assets are exposed to the risk of foreign currency exchange
rate fluctuations. The management regularly monitors the foreign
currency exchange risk of the Group and may consider hedging

activities when necessary.

Annual Report 2022 4 4 #t



RZBZZF=ZA=Z+—B  rEEZKEMBERARED
IKHERITEFN13,000,0008 5T (ZF=—F : 54,000,000
) BAHEMEEESS - I REETREERTRE
ZREEEFH60,000,000/8 T (ZFE=—%F 35,000,000
7T) B BAT E TP 48,000,000 T (ZFE = —F:
4,000,000 7T) °

RER XEBZREEEFEEAHS,0000008 T (=ZF
——% 157,000,000 T) MABEELDARBERE - K
TE--F=ZR=+—H EBEFXEEBLRERITEERHA
EEBERAERURBRREER) NARI3% (ZE=-—F:
25.4%) °

EEER

RZEZZF=ZA=+—H  EKRE{E#H127,000,000/% T
ZE--F=A=+—H:155000,0008 ) ZFEEH

At REFYURREVHEDEIFIEATEEERIRIT

BENER -

==

REZZBZZF=ZA=+—B XEEHEMA300E (==
T—FI374R)EI FEEERBRTPEAM o {8 5 F
HEHEFRFH2KT  UWMBERHRIELAL - HtESRAE
FRFAMELAES AERBERBURZIERE -

REFOEZEDE HBELABRREXBEERE
AEERT EETHLEHH (BESTE - PERL
8% RFIRI M) 2 AEEGIRERN  TFHIORE
HENE (BREARR - BEREF) 2BARER  HE
AHEBRUFHER -

Annual Report 2022 42 ¥4 #

o B i M o3 A

Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 March 2022, the Group maintained secured bank
borrowings of HK$13 million (2021: HK$54 million) at operating
subsidiary level financing its working capital. Besides, the Group
also maintained aggregate composite banking facilities of
approximately HK$60 million (2021: HK$35 million) with
commercial banks, of which approximately HK$8 million (2021:

HK$4 million) were utilised.

The Group ran into net current liabilities of HK$8 million as at
the year end (2021: HK$57 million), with current assets being
less than current liabilities. As at 31 March 2022, the gearing
ratio (aggregate of bank borrowings and lease liabilities divided
by shareholders” equity) was approximately 13.5% (2021:
25.4%).

Charge on assets

As at 31 March 2022, land and buildings held for own use and
investment properties with a carrying value of approximately
HK$127 million (31 March 2021: HK$155 million) were pledged

to secure bank borrowings granted to the Group.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 March 2022, the Group employed 300 (2021: 374)
employees mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Salaries
of employees are maintained at competitive levels while bonuses
are granted on a discretionary basis. Other employee benefits
include mandatory provident fund, statutory and medical

insurance cover and training programmes.

COMMITMENT TO STAKEHOLDERS’ INTERESTS, SOCIETY’S
WELL-BEING AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT

The Group is committed to ensuring the rights and interests of its
stakeholders (including its shareholders, employees and
customers) and the well-being of society at large while
complying with all the laws and regulations of the places where
it has operations, including Hong Kong, Mainland China,

Taiwan, Macau and Singapore.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i¥ B B 4 [ A [ 2 #
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In addition to its business objective of maximizing returns to
shareholders, the Group also tries its best to fulfil its corporate
social responsibility. For instance, the Group ensures protection
of both environment and consumers against hazardous
substances throughout the process of conducting its business,
from raw material procurement, production to retail. The Group
also has taken measures to ensure that its factory in Longhua,
Shenzhen, complies with the local environmental regulations on
industrial emissions and effluents. The factory is only
responsible for sewing and is not engaged in any dyeing of

fabrics.

The Group believes in consumers’ entitlement to quality and
safe products. To attain this goal, the Group maintains
well-established relationships with trustworthy raw material
suppliers and processing factories, and delivers a sample of each
model of its products to Shenzhen Academy of Metrology and
Quality Inspection for inspection. Besides, the Group also
requires all business partners, raw material suppliers and
production vendors to fulfill all relevant legal and regulatory

requirements on product safety.

The Group now has over thirty suppliers and has business
relationship of more than a decade on average with each of
them. Such well-established business relationships with the
suppliers are attributable to the Group’s success in building their

trust in it with integrity and by honouring the contracts.

The Group has established a customer loyalty program in order
to enhance customer satisfaction as well as to encourage
repeated purchase. Under the membership program, the VIP
customers can enjoy special discounts and regular activities. It
also manages and maintains good customer relations through
customer service hotlines, after-sales supports as well as bespoke

service and communication with members via mails and emails.

Annual Report 2022 4 4 #t
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Another group of stakeholders who are also key to the Group’s
success are its employees. The Group offers its staff reasonable
remuneration and benefits and protect their rights according to
the labour laws of the places where it has operations. For
instance, it complies with the relevant laws and regulations on
the employees’ provident fund pension scheme, employment
insurance and safety at work. It also provides training for them
that benefit the development of both their careers and the

Group’s business.

The Group aims to accumulate resources for business and use
them effectively to ensure sustainable development. For
instance, it has been enhancing the brand equity of its house
brands and that of the European brand for which it is a
distributor by actively exploring new markets. It has also
allocated resources for the design, research and development of
products and the training of staff. The move was aimed at
manufacturing products of high quality and refreshing designs
with new and improved materials. It also serves to raise the
efficiency of the retail operations. The Group also tries its best to
protect its intellectual property rights and patents and respects

other parties’ intellectual property rights.

All these initiatives and measures can contribute to the

sustainability of the Group’s business.
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Executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Yum Kit, aged 63, is the Chairman of the Company.
Mr. Chan is one of the co-founders of the Group and has overall
responsibility for the Group’s overall strategic planning,
formulation of corporate policies and marketing. He has over 45
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading.
Mr. Chan was awarded the Young Industrialist Awards of
Hongkong by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries in
November 2001 and was awarded with the DHL/SCMP Hong
Kong Business Award in the Owner-Operator Award category in
December 2001. He was awarded 2006 World Outstanding
Chinese Award by the World Chinese Business Investment
Foundation. He was also awarded 2004 Associateship by The
Professional Validation Council of Hong Kong Industries in
January 2004. He is a senior fellow of Social Enterprise Research
Academy. He is currently an adjunct professor of, and a member
of the higher education advisory committee of, the faculty of
design and environment of Technological and Higher Education
Institute of Hong Kong. Mr. Chan is a member of Hong Kong
Young Industrialists Council, an honorary president of the island
regional association of the Hong Kong Girl Guides Association
and the vice-chairman of HK Guangxi Chamber of Commerce.
He is the husband of Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley and is the father
of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Mr. Chan Pak Hei.
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Ms. TSUI How Kiu, Shirley, aged 63, is an executive director.
She is one of the co-founders of the Group and is the Group’s
vice-chairman. She is responsible for the Group’s merchandising
management and retail operations management. She has over 45
years of experience in business administration in various
industries including garment manufacturing and trading. She was
awarded Golden Bauhinia Women Entrepreneur Excellence
Award in November 2016. She is a member of Zonta Club of
New Territories, an honorary president and council member of
Hong Kong Federation of Women, a co-chairman of HK Tianjin
Women’s Federation, a member of HKFW Women Entrepreneurs
Committee, a delegate of All-China Women’s Federation,
Zhuhai, and an honorary president of All-China Women’s
Federation Hong Kong Delegates Association Limited, of the
island regional association of the Hong Kong Girl Guides
Association, and of Youth DreamMakers Association. Ms. Tsui is
the wife of Mr. Chan, Chairman of the Company, and is the
mother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Mr. Chan Pak Hei.

Mr. CHAN Sze Chun, aged 44, is an executive director. He
joined the Group in December 2000. He is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s overseas market operations. Mr. Chan
Sze Chun holds a bachelor’s degree in commerce from Monash
University of Australia. He is the son of Mr. Chan, Chairman of
the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley, and is the brother
of Mr. Chan Pak Hei.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. YU Yuk Ying, Vivian, aged 62, is an independent
non-executive director appointed in January 2002. Ms. Yu is a
solicitor and a partner with Yung, Yu, Yuen & Co., a firm of
solicitors, and has been practising in Hong Kong for over 34
years with a focus in the conveyancing and commercial
practice. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in science from
University of Wisconsin-Madison as her first degree and then
passed the Solicitors’ Final Examination and qualified as a
solicitor. Ms. Yu has over 33 years’ experience in property
investment and management. She was appointed as
China-appointed Attesting Officer in 2003 and was also
appointed as notary public in December 2009. She is a founding
member of Hong Kong Professionals and Senior Executives

Association.

Mr. CHU Chun Kit, Sidney, aged 61, is an independent
non-executive director appointed in October 2003. Mr. Chu is
currently the CEO of Archiledture Limited. He has 31 years’
experience in international marketing and senior management
role in both the semiconductor and solid-state lighting
industries. Mr. Chu graduated from the University of Essex with
a bachelor’s degree in science (electronic engineering) and
received a master’s degree in science from the University of

Westminster, London.

Ms. WONG Shuk Ying, Helen (alias name: LEE Shuk Ying,
Helen), aged 68, is an independent non-executive director
appointed in September 2004. Ms. Wong is currently the
director of Kimeray Investment Limited. She has over 30 years’
experience in management consulting and systems
implementation in both the public and private sectors.
Ms. Wong is a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada and holds a bachelor’s degree in
commerce from Queen’s University in Canada. She is a member
of the board of directors and the finance committee, and the
chairman of the information technology committee of Heep
Hong Society, and is the honorary treasurer, the chairman of the
information technology development committee and a member
of the social service committee and finance and adminstration

committee of Hong Kong YWCA.

Annual Report 2022 4 4 #t



EREEAR

BERLE  34m AKEETHAS - FTR-Z2ZAF
EAMAREE SEEEAKE BB EERRTRA
BRI -FR RIEEXAEEMEEY THENENE
BESE RERLTEREREARABMABZHEETE
(REZE)NZBLEN RATERHEFHESE - K
DARABREFRAERBRLBL T 2T KREKREEZ
o

wEzL 525 AEEEERERARFAXTAME - R
CEZ-FRAMALREER  FLIH-REBBEX
GIRBRDAAER LT AT ZMBEBERAIANE - BT
i BFRME  TRRARMEFIEEEE=T—F&
B REEEBEIARZSTEXELEURTIHEE (F
KE)VELBN BRHEAELXERBIBMRILER
REGREEEZT24  REBSHALE  HERFFL
RETMHAE BABLTAREAESRABEBTHATRED
TEREE  RERKTEESTNASSERFERTER
AREAEZHXERTEH -

Annual Report 2022 42 ¥4 #

PR ACE BN B A

Directors and Senior Management Profiles

Senior Management

Mr. CHAN Pak Hei, aged 34, is the deputy chief executive
officer of the Group. He joined the Group in May 2009. He is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s overall operations and
design and development functions. In addition, he is also
responsible for the Group’s brand building, marketing and
interior design affairs. Mr. Chan Pak Hei holds a bachelor of arts
degree in fashion management (fashion retail) from University of
the Arts London of the United Kingdom. He is a member of
Hong Kong CPPCC Youth Association. He is the son of
Mr. Chan, Chairman of the Company, and Ms. Tsui How Kiu,
Shirley, and is the brother of Mr. Chan Sze Chun.

Ms. PANG Lin, aged 52, is the chief operating officer of the
Group and the company secretary of the Company. Prior to
joining the Group in June 2001, Ms. Pang served as a finance
manager and company secretary of a company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. She
has over 31 years of experience in the audit, accounting and
finance, administration and corporate secretarial fields. She
holds a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy and a master’s
degree in business administration (fashion business) from Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, a master’s degree in corporate
governance from Hong Kong Metropolitan University and a
bachelor’s degree in Chinese law from Peking University. She is
a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
of the United Kingdom, the Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute (“HKCGI”) and the Chartered Governance Institute of
the United Kingdom, a member of the Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants of the United Kingdom and a holder

of the practitioner’s endorsement of HKCGI.
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Moiselle International Holdings Limited (the “company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “group”) is committed to meeting statutory and
regulatory requirements and adherence to the principles of
corporate governance emphasizing transparency, independence,

accountability, responsibility and fairness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Save for the deviation of the Code Provision A.2.1 as below, the
company has complied with the code provisions listed in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”)
throughout the year ended 31 March 2022.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separated and
should not be performed by the same individual. Currently,
Mr. Chan Yum Kit is the chairman of the board of directors (the
“Board”) and also assumes the role of the chief executive officer.
The Board considers that the current management structure
ensures consistent leadership and optimal efficiency for the
operation of the company. The company will however keep this

matter under review.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the company by the
directors. Based on specific enquiry of the company’s directors,
the directors have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2022.

Annual Report 2022 4 4 #t
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible to provide leadership and control,
formulate the group’s business strategies, assess and address
risks in achieving the group’s objectives and uphold corporate
governance functions, including the aspects of environmental,
social and governance reporting. Operational decision making is

delegated to the management team.

The Board comprises six directors, three of which are executive
directors, namely Mr. Chan Yum Kit (Chairman), Ms. Tsui How
Kiu, Shirley, and Mr. Chan Sze Chun, and three are independent
non-executive directors, namely Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian,
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, five board meetings
were held. One of the meetings was held in accordance with
Code Provision A.2.7 of the CG Code which states that the
Chairman should hold meeting with the independent
non-executive directors without the other directors of the
company present. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the meetings
were held in the form of video conference. The attendance of

each director is set out as follows:

HER R

Director

Attendance record

Mr. Chan Yum Kit 5/5
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 4/4
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 4/4
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 5/5
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 5/5
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 5/5
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Director Training received and date
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During the year ended 31 March 2022, one general meeting, the
annual general meeting, of the company was held. The

attendance of each director is set out as follows:

H AT 8%
Director Attendance record
Mr. Chan Yum Kit 1/1
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley 1”71
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 171
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 1/1
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 11
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 1”71

The relationship among members of the Board is separately

disclosed in the directors and senior management profiles.

DIRECTORS” TRAINING
The directors have provided records of the training they received
to the company. The details of training records provided of each

director are set out as follows:

A LR E IR R B bR A EREE

—E-__F-A=-+=H
Mr. Chan Yum Kit

Managing Corruption Risk and

HAlRHE P B
Training provider Time spent
ERESEE 2N
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors 2 hours

Fraud with Building an Effective Internal

Control and Whistleblowing System for

Companies
22 February 2022
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Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley

Mr. Chan Sze Chun

REEELE

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen
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Training received and date
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HAlRHE

Training provider

BERESES

The Hong Kong Institute of Directors

Fraud with Building an Effective Internal

Control and Whistleblowing System for

Companies
22 February 2022

NEBBEM AR ERE S
A LR E IR R B bR A0 EKEE

—E-__F-A=-+=H

Managing Corruption Risk and

BERESES

The Hong Kong Institute of Directors

Fraud with Building an Effective Internal

Control and Whistleblowing System for

Companies
22 February 2022

202252 HRBRERE
“E--FZA++tH

Global Investment Outlook 2022
17 February 2022

BIYkHITESRIE

—E-—-FfXA=+—-A"
—E--FhA+=R8-
=EF=-Ft+t=AARA-
—E-__F=A=+NH

INED Forum

21 June 2021, 13 September 2021,
6 December 2021, 28 March 2022
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BBERET

The Hong Kong Institute of Directors

EEREMEBA

KPMG

FrEER
Time spent

2/NBE

2 hours

2/NBE

2 hours

2/NBE

2 hours

5 hours
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= FriEssEdi & B HAlRHE P 3 B

Director Training received and date Training provider Time spent

BERRZE FHITESRE BARKEE TS BT 3.5 /N
—E--FRAA=RB"

—EZ-F%tAXHE-
—E--%+-A+-8"
—E--F=A=TMHA
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen ~ Non-Executive Director PricewaterhouseCoopers 3.5 hours
Programme
2 September 2021, 6 October 2021
11 November 2021, 24 March 2022

Are you ready for the ESG RERBHFARETMOAE 1 /B
transformation?

—E--FZA+NR

Are you ready for the ESG transformation? Association of Chartered Certified 1 hour

18 February 2022 Accountants

RiRRERER ERRET BB 1.25 M

—E--F=A—H

Climate Risk Management KPMG 1.25 hours

1 March 2022

Hong Kong Year-End Updates EEHEMBHA 1/NE§
—E-_-_%=HRZH
Hong Kong Year-End Updates KPMG 1 hour

2 March 2022

Boardroom Update Virtual BERKEETRSEHA 1.5 N
Roundtable

—E-"Ff=At+-H

Boardroom Update Virtual Roundtable PricewaterhouseCoopers 1.5 hours

11 March 2022
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Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian had provided confirmation on her
fulfillment of the mandatory continuing professional
development requirements of The Law Society of Hong Kong
during the year ended 31 March 2022.

TERM OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The company has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors a confirmation of independence for the
year ended 31 March 2022 pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers all the independent non-executive directors

to be independent.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The company has a nomination committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the nomination committee comprise two independent
non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying,
Vivian (Chairperson) and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and one

executive director, Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley.

The main role and function of the nomination committee consist
of formulation and implementation of the nomination policy,
review of the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity of perspectives) of
the Board, and making recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors in particular

the chairman and the chief executive.
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BOARD DIVERSITY
The company has adopted a board diversity policy which

consists of the following main aspects:

a. Board composition to be reviewed in terms of the size of
the Board, the number of non-executive directors and

executive directors in relation to the overall Board,

b.  Board effectiveness which requires members to have diverse
skills, knowledge and experiences that combine to provide

different perspectives and effective board dynamics, and

c.  Nominations and appointments to be carried out in view of
maintaining an appropriate mix of required skills,

experience, expertise and diversity on the Board.

The nomination committee is responsible to review the policy
on board diversity and any measurable objectives for its
implementation and to review the progress on achieving the

objectives.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The company has a remuneration committee which was
established in compliance with the CG Code. The members of
the remuneration committee comprise two independent
non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu Yuk Ying,
Vivian (Chairperson) and Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney, and one

executive director, Mr. Chan Sze Chun.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, two remuneration
committee meetings were held. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic,
the meetings were held in the form of video conference. The

attendance of each committee member is set out as follows:

o FE 50 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 2/2
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 2/2
Mr. Chan Sze Chun 2/2
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The main role and function of the remuneration committee
consist of determining the remuneration packages and the terms
of employment of the directors and senior management. During
the year, the remuneration committee has approved the terms of
executive directors’ service agreements and of non-executive

director’s appointments.

The emoluments of the executive directors are determined with
reference to the duties, responsibilities and experience of the
directors and prevailing market conditions. Besides the basic
salaries and benefits-in-kind as stipulated in the service
agreements, prior approval of the remuneration committee is
also required for performance related benefits of the executive

directors.

The emoluments of the non-executive directors are determined
based on the estimated time spent by them on the company’s

matters.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments of the members of the senior management by

band for the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out below:

AE
HK$ Number of person
1,000,001 - 1,500,000 1
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 1

Further particulars regarding directors’ remuneration and
individuals with highest emoluments as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in notes

10 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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AUDITORS” REMUNERATION
During the year, the remuneration paid or payable to the group’s

independent auditor is analysed as follows:

BT
HK$
Bt iR Audit services 760,000
FETRE Non-audit services 70,000
830,000

ERERS AUDIT COMMITTEE

RRARRBRETRAEI2NMRRLBELEZES  EEEX
REZRAEE o MBERABBREUNAREER A BEZS
B -BEREEETHARAMUBILFHTESAR 25
AREELL (EF)  KEGRETEREARZLT - XHE
EEER-

REBEE-ZE--F=-F=1+—-HLEE SEIT=ZREZ
ZEEEE HRE2019BRNESHRBEE &N
REeEFXET BLZEERECHERFINT :

=
REELZL

REBETE
BERRZL
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The company has an audit committee which was established in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the group’s
financial reporting process and risk management and internal
control systems. The audit committee comprises three
independent non-executive directors of the company, Ms. Yu
Yuk Ying, Vivian (Chairperson), Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney and
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen, and reports to the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, three audit committee
meetings were held. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the
meetings were held in the form of video conference. The

attendance of each committee member is set out as follows:

o FE R 8%
Director Attendance record
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 3/3
Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 3/3
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 3/3
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During the year, the audit committee has reviewed with the
management the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the group, the interim and annual financial statements of the
group, met and discussed with the independent auditors, and
raised queries and obtained explanations from the management
on issues related to financial and operational control procedures

of the group.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges their responsibilities on the
maintenance of risk management and internal control systems
which are essential for effective and efficient operations of the
group and are fundamental in the thorough and regular
evaluation of the nature and extent of the risks to which the
group is exposed. These systems are designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. Internal control is defined
as a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the achievement of objectives in relation to the following:
e Effectiveness and efficiency of operations;

e Reliability of financial reporting; and

e Compliance with applicable laws and regulations

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board, with the
assistance of the management, had conducted an annual review
on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the group, focusing on three major business cycles of
the group, under COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission) framework. The Board had been
satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of these systems on
monitoring and evaluating the risks. Based on the results, the
directors were dedicated to implement various initiatives to
further enhance the existing risk management and internal
control systems alongside with the ongoing business

development of the group.
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During the year, the group has maintained an internal audit
function with internal resources and engaged external
consultants to assist the management in order to identify,

evaluate and manage significant risks of the group.

The group complies with the Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information published by the Securities and Futures Commission
in view of fulfilling its obligations to disclose inside information

under Part XIVA of the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

DIRECTORS” RESPONSIBILITIES FOR PREPARING ACCOUNTS
The company’s directors acknowledge that they are responsible
for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements

which give a true and fair view.

STATEMENT BY THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

The statement of the independent auditor of the company
regarding their responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements is set out in the independent auditor’s report

on pages 45 to 57.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board adopts a dividend policy under which when
considering declaration of dividends, the company shall
maintain adequate cash reserves in order to meet its working
capital and future growth requirements, and shall preserve its
shareholders’ value by allowing shareholders to participate in

the company’s profit distribution.

The Board shall declare and distribute dividends to the
shareholders of the company in compliance with the articles of
association of the company and all applicable regulatory

framework.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the company plays an important role
in supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow
within the Board, facilitating induction and professional
development of the Board members and advising on governance.
The company secretary of the company is Ms. Pang Lin, who is
a full-time employee of the group and reports to the Board. All
directors of the company have access to the advice and services
of the company secretary to ensure that Board policies and
procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations, are

followed.

Ms. Pang was appointed as the company secretary of the
company in accordance with Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. Her
academic and professional qualifications and relevant
experience are disclosed in the directors and senior management

profiles.

Ms. Pang has provided to the company the proof that she has
complied with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and has taken no
less than fifteen hours of relevant professional training during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND COMMUNICATION

According to article 58 of the company’s articles of association,
any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the company secretary of the
company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionist himself may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist by the company.
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If a member of the public or a shareholder wishes to put forward
enquiries to the Board and/or put forward proposals at
shareholders’ meetings, he/she must deposit a written notice (the
“Notice”) to the principal place of business of the company in
Hong Kong at Units 1-5, 11th Floor, Kodak House 2, 39 Healthy
Street East, North Point, Hong Kong, or the branch share
registrar of the company, Hong Kong Registrars Limited, at 17M
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong

Kong for the attention of the company secretary of the company.

In order for a proposal to be considered in general meetings, the
period for lodgement of the Notice will commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice by the company of
the general meeting to be convened and end no later than seven
days prior to the date of such general meeting. If the Notice is
received less than fifteen days prior to the general meeting, the
company will need to consider the adjournment of the general
meeting in order to give shareholders fourteen days’ notice of

the proposal.

The Notice will be verified with the company’s branch share
registrar and upon their confirmation that the request is proper
and in order, the company secretary of the company will ask the
relevant committee of the company and the Board to consider to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting to

be convened.
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The directors of Moiselle International Holdings Limited (“the
company”) presented its annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the company and its

subsidiaries (the “group”) for the year ended 31 March 2022.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The company is a company incorporated and domiciled in the
Cayman Islands and has its registered office and principal place
of business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands and Units 1-5, 11/F,
Kodak House 2, 39 Healthy Street East, North Point, Hong Kong

respectively.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the group are the design, manufacture,
retail and wholesale of fashion apparel and accessories. The
principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are

set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

The analysis of geographical location of the operations of the
group during the financial year is set out in note 5 to the

consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the businesses of the group during the year, a
discussion on the group’s future business development and an
analysis of the group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators are provided in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 4 to 9 and the Management

Discussion and Analysis on pages 10 to 17 of this annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

For principal risks and uncertainties, the directors are aware that
the group is exposed to risks and uncertainties, including those
specific to the group and those having generic impacts. The
management closely monitors the business environment in
which the group operates in order to have opportunities and
threats the group faces identified, reported, monitored and
managed on a continuous basis. Related discussion on certain
risks and uncertainties is provided in the Chairman’s Statement
on pages 4 to 9 and the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 10 to 17 of this annual report and notes 28 and 29 to

the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the percentage of the
five largest customers combined were less than 30% of the

group’s total revenue.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS
The information in respect of the group’s purchases attributable

to the major suppliers respectively during the financial year is as

follows:
FEERBESTEIL
Percentage of the group’s
purchases total
The largest supplier 17%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 45%

At no time during the year have the directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the company (which to the best knowledge of
the directors owns more than 5% of the company’s share

capital) had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
group for each of the last five financial years is set out on pages
179 and 180.
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DIVIDEND

The board did not declare the payment of an interim dividend
for the six months ended 30 September 2021 (2020: Nil). The
directors do not declare the payment of a final dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2022 (2021: Nil).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable donations made by the group during the year
amounted to HK$10,000 (2021: HK$30,000).

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the company’s share capital are set out in note 23 to
the consolidated financial statements. There were no movements

during the year.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

The group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF
scheme is a defined contribution retirement scheme
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant
income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000.

As stipulated by the regulations of the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”), the group participates in defined contribution
retirement plans organised by the relevant authorities for its
Mainland China employees. The group is required to make
contributions to the retirement plans which are calculated based
on certain prescribed rates on the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of its Mainland China employees. The group has no
other material obligation for the payment of pension benefits
associated with such plans beyond the annual contributions

described above.
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RETIREMENT SCHEME (continued)

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan
chose to participate in a defined contribution scheme governed
by the Labour Pension Act of Taiwan. This subsidiary contributes
at 6% of the total salaries of participating employees who have
chosen to participate in the defined contribution scheme,
deposited into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of

Labour Insurance of Taiwan.

Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in the
Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”) organised by the
government of Singapore. This subsidiary and its employees are
required to contribute a certain percentage of the employees’
payroll to the CPF. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
CPF. The subsidiary has no further obligations for the actual
pension payments or post-retirement benefits beyond its

contributions.

Contributions to the defined contribution scheme are charged to

profit or loss when incurred.
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DIRECTORS
The directors during the financial year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive directors

Mr. Chan Yum Kit

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
Mr. Chan Sze Chun

Independent non-executive directors
Ms. Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian

Mr. Chu Chun Kit, Sidney

Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen

Mr. Chan Sze Chun and Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen will retire
at the forthcoming annual general meeting in accordance with
article 87 of the company’s articles of association and, being

eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS” SERVICE CONTRACTS
The independent non-executive directors were appointed for a
term of two years and are subject to retirement by rotation in

accordance with the articles of association of the company.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation, other than normal

statutory obligations.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2022, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)

were as follows:

RO ZERER ERBNE I
Beneficial Approximate BEmE
EspnR interest percentage Nature of
Name of director in shares of interests interest
PRI K& 193,708,000 67.28% NG
Mr. Chan Yum Kit Corporate/Family
2,100,000 0.73% Edi
Family
2,100,000 0.73% [EPN
Personal
(H1EE(1)R(2)
(Notes (1) and (2))
®RIELL 193,708,000 67.28% NG
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley Corporate/Family
2,100,000 0.73% ENi
Family
2,100,000 0.73% 8 A
Personal
(Bat(1)K2))
(Notes (1) and (2))
REB®ZEE 900,000 0.31% @A
Mr. Chan Sze Chun Personal
BERRLZ L 28,000 0.01% {EPN
Ms. Wong Shuk Ying, Helen Personal
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

(1) 190,000,000 of these shares are held by Super Result Consultants
Limited (“Super Result”). The share capital of Super Result is
beneficially owned by Mr. Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”) and
Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley (“Ms. Tsui”) as to 46.7% and 46.7%
respectively. Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be
deemed interested in the 190,000,000 shares held by Super Result
as corporate interest.

3,708,000 of these shares are held by New First Investments
Limited (“New First”). The share capital of New First is beneficially
owned by Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 50% and 50% respectively.
Each of Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui will therefore be deemed interested
in the 3,708,000 shares held by New First as corporate interest.

(2)  Since Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui are married to each other, Mr. Chan
will be deemed interested in the shares which Ms. Tsui is deemed
interested in as family interest, and vice versa.

In addition to the above, one director has non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the group. Certain director also has beneficial interest
in non-voting deferred shares practically carrying no rights to
dividends or to receive notice of or to attend or vote at any
general meeting or to participate in any distribution or winding

up in a subsidiary.

Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 March 2022, none of the
directors or the chief executive of the company or their
respective associates had any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the company or any
of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO, as recorded in the register kept by the company under
section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the company

and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year ended 31
March 2022 was the company, or any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the directors or the chief executive of the company or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or

debentures of the company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL INTERESTS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2022, the interests or short positions of the
following shareholder, other than the directors and the chief
executive of the company, in the shares or underlying shares of
the company which have been disclosed to the company
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO have been recorded in the
register kept by the company under section 336 of the SFO:

BRAEEEH

ERTROZBNEI L

HRROGEAH Approximate percentage
Aggregate long of aggregate interests to

position in shares total issued shares

Super Result

BtEE - Super Resultz RATDHREERBKZ T DIEHES
46.7%K46.7% °

BREMER EX[EEREBTRAERE S 2BE |-
FBARAEERETEZTHAE ZEEN  BEAQFR
BEZRPERAEBMZAEFE 2 LMATRRE -
RZBZZF=ZA=+—0  UEEMALRERITRE
HEEARD PEARESAR

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥

190,000,000 65.99% (#1&E) (Note)

Note: The share capital of Super Result is beneficially owned by
Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui as to 46.7% and 46.7% respectively.

Apart from the foregoing, and other than the directors and the
chief executive of the company whose interests are set out in the
section “Directors’ and chief executive’s interests in securities”
above, no person was recorded in the register kept by the
company under section 336 of the SFO as having an interest or a
short position in the shares or underlying shares of the company
as at 31 March 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party, in which a director of the
company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain material related party transactions as set out in note
31(a) to the consolidated financial statements fall under the
definition of continuing connected transactions in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The transactions are exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.33 of

the Listing Rules.

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF THE LISTING
RULES

On 28 May 2020, the Group, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary, entered into a facility letter with an existing bank for
a revised banking facility up to an aggregate amount of
HK$65,000,000. In June 2022, the facility amount was further
revised to HK$55,000,000. Pursuant to the terms of the facility
letter, the Group undertakes with the bank that the directors,
Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui, shall remain to be the directors and the

largest shareholder of the Company.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the company’s
articles of association or the law in the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the company to offer new shares on a pro rata

basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

There were no purchases, sales or redemptions of the company’s
listed securities by the company or any of its subsidiaries during

the year.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report, the company has maintained the
prescribed public float required under the Listing Rules, based
on the information that is publicly available to the company and

within the knowledge of the directors of the company.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the
directors of the company is currently in force and was in force

throughout the year.

AUDITORS
During the year, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu resigned as
auditors of the company and Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited was

appointed as auditors of the company to fill the casual vacancy.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution of the
re-appointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited as auditors of
the company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO APPENDIX 16 PARAGRAPH 30
OF THE LISTING RULES

During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, there was
change in the auditors of the company from KPMG to Messrs.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

By Order of the Board

Chan Yum Kit

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Moiselle International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 58 to 176, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2022, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(continued)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment

We identified the impairment of right-of-use assets and
property, plant and equipment as a key audit matter due to
inherent uncertainty pertaining to the assumptions required in
determining the future discounted cash flow forecasts of each
of the cash-generating units (“CGUs”) being the individual
retail stores and involvement of significant degree of
management judgement and estimation in determining the

amount of provision.

Management judgement is required to identify those CGUs
requiring provision for or reversal of impairment in current
year, while estimation is required to assess the recoverable
amounts of each CGU.

Impairment losses, net of reversal, on right-of-use assets of
HK$6,511,000 and property, plant and equipment of
HK$1,439,000 respectively were recognised during the year
ended 31 March 2022. As at 31 March 2022, the carrying
amounts of the right-of-use assets and property, plant and
equipment were HK$32,134,000 and HK$351,249,000
respectively.

Our procedures in relation to the impairment of right-of-use
assets and property, plant and equipment included:

e  Obtaining an understanding of the Group’s control and
assessment process in identifying the indicators of
potential impairment and estimating the recoverable
amount of each CGU by considering the level of
inherent risk of estimation uncertainty and susceptibility
to management bias;

e Evaluating the appropriateness in management’s
identification of CGUs, the allocation of assets to each
CGU identified and the impairment assessment
methodology adopted by management;

e Comparing the most significant inputs used in the
preparation of the discounted cash flow forecasts,
including future revenue and related future expenses,
with the historical performance of these retail stores and
the budgets and forecasts approved by directors of the
Company, taking into account recent developments in
the retail sector and the future operating plans for the
Group;

e Evaluating the reasonableness of the discount rates
applied in the cash flow forecasts;

e  Evaluating the sensitivity analysis prepared by the
management on the inputs used to evaluate the extent of

impact on the estimated future cash flows; and

e Testing the mathematical accuracy of provision for or

reversal of impairment made by management.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of inventories

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key audit
matter because of the inherent estimation uncertainty within
the assumptions made by management when determining the
provision of inventories.

Management has determined the write down for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items at the end of the reporting
period with reference to the ageing analysis of inventories,
historical consumption trends and by comparing the carrying
amount of inventories with their estimated net realisable
values.

As at 31 March 2022, the carrying amount of inventories was
HK$30,617,000.

Our procedures in relation to valuation of inventories
included:

e  Obtaining an understanding of the basis used to
determine the inventory provision policy and the
information used by management to determine the
inventory provisions;

e Testing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
inventory ageing report were classified within the
appropriate ageing brackets by comparing the individual
items selected with underlying records which indicated
the season of production of the item;

e Testing the mathematical accuracy of inventory
provisions made by management;

e Evaluating the reasonableness of management’s
inventory provision policy by comparing management’s
forecasts of the net amounts of unsold inventories of
each season with the historical sales trends for the
current and prior years; and

e Assessing the reasonableness of management’s estimates
of the net realisable values of the inventories including
the comparing of the amounts, on a sample basis, to
actual sales transactions subsequent to the end of the
reporting period.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties and land and buildings held for own use

We identified the valuation of investment properties and land
and buildings held for own use as a key audit matter because
the valuations of these properties require the exercise of

significant judgement and estimation.

The fair values of the investment properties and land and
buildings held for own use were assessed by the directors
based on valuations prepared by an independent firm of
qualified professional property valuers. The key estimates and
assumptions adopted in the valuation by the external property
valuer included unobservable inputs used such as
capitalisation rate and the selection of comparable market

transactions.

The Group’s investment properties and land and buildings
held for own use were valued at HK$250,916,000 and
HK$349,234,000 as at 31 March 2022, respectively.

Our procedures in relation to valuation of investment

properties and land and buildings held for own use included:

e Obtaining and inspecting the valuation reports prepared
by the external property valuer engaged by the Group
and on which the directors” assessment of the fair values
of investment properties and land and buildings held for

own use was based;

e Assessing the external property valuer’s qualifications,
experience and expertise in the properties being valued

and considering their objectivity;

e Discussing with the external property valuer, to
understand the valuation methodology applied and the
key estimates and assumptions adopted in their
valuations and assess their reasonableness and the

consistency with industry norms; and

e Comparing the significant unobservable inputs and
comparable market transactions adopted by the external
property valuer with available market data, on a sample

basis.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(continued)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2021 were audited by another independent
auditor whose report dated 29 June 2021 expressed an

unmodified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(continued)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing

the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(continued)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated

financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's

internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

(continued)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group

to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events

in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance

regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of

the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF MOISELLE INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(continued)

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this

independent auditor’s report is Chan Kwan Ho, Edmond.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 June 2022

Chan Kwan Ho, Edmond

Practising certificate number P02092
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
HE-T-—_F=F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

—E=-= —EBE-—F
2022 2021
B = FHET THET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
iy &= Revenue 5 138,526 127,283
SHE R A Cost of sales (41,920) (40,378)
EA Gross profit 96,606 86,905
HAb A Other income 6 17,665 32,605
Hib W m R EE Other gains and losses 7 8,505 11,787
DEREERX Distribution and selling expenses (109,837) (102,158)
ITHREMEERX Administrative and other operating expenses (57,408) (58,217)
KEEE Loss from operations (44,469) (29,078)
REMELAREEY Gain on changes in fair value of
Z Wz investment properties 14 5,984 14,319
B & B AR Finance costs (2,510) (4,838)
BRELATE 1B Loss before taxation (40,995) (19,597)
FriEsiE % (BAx%) Income tax credit (expense) 8 48 (3,608)
FREBE Loss for the year 9 (40,947) (23,205)
H b 2 W 25 Other comprehensive income
BTEEH T EE Item that will not be reclassified to
BEnzEE profit or loss:
FIEBERLHREEY Gain on revaluation of land and
ZEfH W 0 HBREEREER buildings held for own use,
net of related income tax 16,848 23,819
RIEEAREEFT D EE Item that may be reclassified subsequently to
BEmZEE profit or loss:
BEBIEB EREZE Exchange differences arising on translation
of foreign operations 6,957 803
23,805 24,622
FEE2H (FX) REAH Total comprehensive (expense) income for
the year (17,142) 1,417
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
—ZF=A=T—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

—E=-= —EBE-—F
2022 2021
B = FHET THET
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
THATEERFERSRS : Loss for the year attributable to:
EAYNETESZ =N Owners of the Company (40,718) (22,751)
IR ES Non-controlling interests (229) (454)
(40,947) (23,205)
THATEEZE (BAX) Total comprehensive (expense) income
Wz ABE attributable to:
RAREFEEA Owners of the Company (16,913) 1,871
IR R Non-controlling interests (229) (454)
(17,142) 1,417
BREE Loss per share
HAR(Ex) Basic (HK dollars) 13 (0.14) (0.08)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
RZE-_—_F=A=+—H At 31 March 2022

—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
i3 THERT THERT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FRBEE Non-current assets
REYHE Investment properties 14 250,916 297,783
WE BMERRE Property, plant and equipment 14 351,249 379,353
FRHEEE Right-of-use assets 15 32,134 33,858
ENRE Deposits paid 16 6,991 5,240
BEERBHERE Deferred tax assets 22 243 351
641,533 716,585
RBEE Current assets
7E Inventories 17 30,617 39,270
JE UK BR TR e H i BE WX Trade and other receivables 18 28,239 32,741
RITEBRREAS Bank balances and cash 14,424 17,567
73,280 89,578
RBEE Current liabilities
JE A BR R % LAt P& A9 R Trade and other payables 19 30,041 31,500
HEEE Lease liabilities 20 38,520 61,467
FEASBiTE Tax payable 140 110
B8 Borrowings 21 12,917 53,543
81,618 146,620
REBEEFE Net current liabilities (8,338) (57,042)
EEHABRRBAE Total assets less current liabilities 633,195 659,543
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RZZZ—#=F=+—H At 31 March 2022
—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
ot = THET FHET
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
HEEE Lease liabilities 20 17,839 19,920
REFESHAE Deferred tax liabilities 22 100,543 107,668
118,382 127,588
EERE Net assets 514,813 531,955
EARRE Capital and reserves
[ Share capital 23 2,880 2,880
] Reserves 513,136 530,049
ERRBEREABGRRES Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 516,016 532,929
R ER Non-controlling interests (1,203) (974)
BB RER Total equity 514,813 531,955

FS8R176EZHREMBRRERZZE__FA=Th
BEESERRETFIRY  YATIHIESARESE .

Chan Yum Kit
Director

=

The consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 176 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
29 June 2022 and are signed on its behalf by:

Tsui How Kiu, Shirley
®RIE
Director

2
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE_T-—_F=F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

KAAEAARG
Attributable to owners of the Company
FERBAR  NEERRRE FERER

i BftEE Bk EXRE Statutory Property 2ithE N #RFER
Share Share Other Exchange reserve revaluation — Accumulated ) controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve funds reserve losses Total interests Equity
Thn Tén Tn Thn Thn T Tn T Tén TAn
HKS'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HKS000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

(ki) (ki)

(note i) [note i)

H-8-2EMA-R At1 April 2020 2,880 05,327 1 0175 9,336 446,465 (15,246) 531,058 (520) 530,538

EREE Loss for the year - - - - - - (22,751) (22,751) (54) (23,205)

FERALERER2 Gain on revaluationof land and buildings held

Ettha for own use - 30400 30400 30400

EffRER1NR Income ax rlating to revaluation ofland and

BEN2 MG buildings held for own use - (6,581) (6,581) (6,581)
BEENEHAEL 2 Exchange differences arising from translation of
EFEE foreign operations = = 803 5 = = 803 = 803
EhAENE (HX) 48 Total comprehensive income (expense) for
the year - 803 - 3,819 (22,751) 187 (454) 1417
H=%=-%2f=1-AR AU31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021
Z2-5RE-A 2,880 05,327 1 0978 9,336 470,284 (37,997) 532,929 (974) 531,955
EnEE Loss for the year 5 = = = = = (40,718) (40,718) (40947)
KRR ERESNZ Gain on revaluatio of land and buildings held
e for own use - - - 10,138 10,138 - 10,138
EftEERRLAR Income tax relaing o revaluation of land and
BENCFER buildings held for own use - - 2,53 - (2,534) - (2534
HEARBERREERLLR Reversal of income tax relating to revaluation of
BR2HER land and buldings hld for own use upon
disposal - - 9244 - 9,044 - 9,44
BEENZHAEL, xchange differences arising from translation of
EXZE foreign operations = = 6,957 5 = = 6,957 6,957
EdE (FR) 4EEE Total comprehensive (expense) income for
the year - - 6,957 - 16,648 (40,718) (16,913) (229) (17,142)
HERNZENRRRAZZHER Transfer of propery revaluation surplus to
accumulated losses upon disposal = = = (49,478) 49478 - - -

W-§ZZEZf=+-R At 31 March 2022 2,880 05,327 m 29,935 9,336 437,654 (29,237) 516,016 (1,203) 514,813

=t - Notes:

() HthEEER-—ZZ_F-—A-t+HRERZEEEE (i) Other reserve represents the difference between the nominal value
AMBE BRI 2 RAEEEMRLERREZARR of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal
AEBITRACHEZESE value of the shares of the Company issued in exchange thereof

pursuant to a group reorganisation which became effective on 25
January 2002.
(il REIEBECEBERAZPEARLEANE (HED E (i)  According to the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) laws

B ARBZHE A HE AR AR IMEEERRD
B oRAREESRBIRBRENES - BEFRY
CREESEDREFERRBEN (RPEERTEH)
ZI0%BRIBBEESAN HEEZETZERESHT
MEARZ50%R1E -  WHES A AFREHBERERS
BREXAAZ - PEARNMKEAR 2ESSTHFERE
BREZFEBIHIRBRENEE R-ZFZTHF
TAZ+EHBIEMNE H=FEAF-A—A&:
FHRERTBREIEEF ARYERBITREBREF
EEFHEE-

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥

applicable to wholly-owned foreign investment enterprises,
Mainland China subsidiaries of the Company are required to set up
two statutory reserve funds, general reserve fund and staff general
fund. General reserve fund was set up by appropriating at least
10% of their annual profit after taxation, as determined under PRC
regulations, until the balance of the fund reaches 50% of their
registered capital. This fund can be used to make good losses or to
convert into paid-in capital. Transfer from retained profits to staff
general fund was made at the discretion of the board of directors of
Mainland China subsidiaries. Starting from 1 January 2006, the
transfer is no longer a statutory obligation upon the revision of the
law on 27 October 2005 and no transfer to staff general fund has
been made since then.
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HEBERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

—E-—F —E-—F
2022 2021
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RERH Operating activities
PR%1 A 18 Loss before tax (40,995) (19,597)
BT HEL AR Adjustments for:
mE B A Finance costs 2,510 4,838
FEUWA Interest income (20) (124)
REVMEQAREZH 2 W E Gain on changes in fair value of investment properties (5,984) (14,319)
NE BMERREZFTE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13,670 12,180
EREEEZIE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 33,990 38,907
M- BERREBEZRERSE Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment,

R net 1,439 3,434
FREEEZRERBEFE Impairment losses on right-of-use assets, net 6,511 17,973
2019BRESHEER SRR Covid-19 related rent concessions (10,082) (19,677)
REALIBEEENZ KR Gain on early termination of lease contracts (9,220) (9,280)
HEME BERRE 2 WG Gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment (171) (80)

RETEEESEDA 2 Operating cash flows before movements in working

RERERE capital (8,352) 14,255
FERD Decrease in inventories 9,563 16,455
FE U BRI L 1t B UK Decrease (increase) in trade and

2 () other receivables 2,639 (7,177)
FE A3 BR T R EL At BB A3 5k 2 Rl 2> Decrease in trade and other payables (2,017) (12,904)
REXBHAERE Cash from operations 1,833 10,629
[ERRE R Tax paid

-—ENERNEHR - Hong Kong Profits Tax paid - (9)

- BN EBRIAER — Income tax outside Hong Kong paid (235) (259)
REEFHFEREFR Net cash from operating activities 1,598 10,361
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HE-T-—_F=F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

—E-—F ——=
2022 2021
FHET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
REED Investing activities
HEREYE 2 IBFIE Proceeds on disposal of investment properties 54,720 -
HEME  BENRKZEZFEKIE Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 29,758 80
REHERS Refund of rental deposits 3,268 10,277
ElFE Interest received 20 124
BAYE  BEKRE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,721) (4,162)
XNHEEERE Payment of rental deposits (2,762) (1,607)
REFDRBREFH Net cash from investing activities 82,283 4,712
RMETH Financing activities
BERTEE Repayment of bank borrowings (134,582) (24,519)
EEHEEE Repayment of lease liabilities (45,097) (43,934)
22 Interest paid (2,510) (4,838)
FEEZMERE Proceeds from new borrowings 93,956 43,982
METBHMARSEE Net cash used in financing activities (88,233) (29,309)
ReRBeEEYRD FHE Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (4,352) (14,236)
RENZRERAEZEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year 17,567 31,829
ERgg o E Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 1,209 (26)
RERZRERAEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year,
RREBETEBRRRAE represented by bank balances and cash 14,424 17,567
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

—RER 1. GENERAL INFORMATION

SHEBREEAERAR (A7) REME AR Moiselle International Holdings Limited (the "Company";
BIAER]) D ZRBREHEFE LA EENE and its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the "Group")
(1961 FE=5E0 - RFERIERT) REASEFHSEM is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
MIERRERAR ERONEBHEXZME Islands with limited liability under the Companies Law,
PRAFEMR EH o HEAZER A T ASuper Result Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
Consultants Limited ([ Super Result]) » ZARHB—K the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Main
REBELHESEMB L ZBRAFE - RAREFER Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. lIts
HITESHRRANLE ([RELE]) RAAAHTESR ultimate holding company is Super Result Consultants
sz £ (MR £ 1) & BMSuper ResulthsH46.7%MKR Limited ("Super Result"), a limited company incorporated in
EoAQRAZEAMBPEERFTELEE B U ER the British Virgin Islands. Mr. Chan Yum Kit (“Mr. Chan”),
RAB2FRPDBER —HHE - the chairman and executive director of the Company, and

Ms. Tsui How Kiu, Shirley (“Ms. Tsui”), executive director
of the Company, each holds 46.7% equity interest in Super
Result. The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the

section of Corporate Information in the Company’s annual

report.
ARRR—FIBREZRLQA - AREIMBARZEE The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
EBRRET  HERTERHRHRAEE - BRALLD principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
REEME DR ZFBEHNMES - design, manufacture and retail of fashion apparel and

accessories. Details of principal subsidiaries of the

Company are set out in note 33.
FEUBBRRDUBITES  TRRDRZNEE - The consolidated financial statements are presented in

Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is also the functional

currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—_F=F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022
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2. BAFIERVMBHRERN(EEBMBREE
Rl RABET &
RAEAFEREER BB BHEERZETAR

RAFE  AEERERESMBHRRE - BAER
THHRERSTMLAS ((FEBEHMAE ) BAELR
—EC-FENA-HIAZEMRBZFERBEEEN
ZEBUBRELEL ZEFTA

BRMBHREERES - BEERNRYE -
BREERE39% EMER

BRMBHREENE7S -
BRMBREERE4R
REBMBREER
1637 2 IBFT A

RAFERAEBUBRELN ZBITAHAEER
FEERBEFEZHBERRARRRR GRS B
BRABBRBLEERLE -

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")
Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for
the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021 for the

preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, — Phase 2
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group's
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in the

consolidated financial statements.
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SHEMEERERZHIERBMBREENREITAE

AEETEREZRATIEBMEERERZHTE
B BHREENRETA

BENBREENE 7% REREHRABEET
$2

BEMBREEAEIRZBETR BoERZ R

BRUBRERAFI0RREBENE REZRABENT

B 552858 2 1B RT AR FEELEZEN
EEHEFEAN
BBETERFIE2BTA BEEIBAREN
FREBREBRE
FE(ZEZEH)
Z BB R] A2

EREHEAFIFREBUBREE SHURKE
BIEHRERR 2B X

BRBEEAER 2B A St 2 ER
BREHENENR BT HE-RGfEEZ
BENEREHZ
R IR
BREHEAE IR 2BITA NE- BERRE-
RERBA RS
R
BREHENER2BITR BREAKN-BTEA
ZRRA
BEMBREENZBITR ZB-N\EE-BC
ZERBBHRSE
EAFERE

| RSB -A-AHzARRRZFERBEX
2 RIBRC=F-A-RRZERBZFERBLER
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RETERARERFTEHGSUBHRRELEEAY
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Ao 7 S 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related
Amendments?

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework'

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and  Sale or Contribution of Assets

HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current

or Non-current and related
amendments to Hong Kong
Interpretation 5 (2020)*
Amendments to HKAS T and  Disclosure of Accounting Policies®
HKEFRS Practice Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
- Proceeds before Intended Use'

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract'

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020"

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022.

Z Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined.

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below,
the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) anticipate
that the application of all other new and amendments to
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the consolidated

financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—_F=F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

2. BAFIERVMBHRERN(EEBMBREE
Al RAERT & (&)

BREHENE IR ZETAREEI BERARD I
REBRERRBESR (CE-2F) 2HBBITE]

ZEBTARTEEEENREEEREAHERED
TEAMERNREEEREIMNES - LEEESE
RREBHERE - B -

s FHEABERERBEIRFENENMIERR
BHERE - ARME ZEBITAES

ZO BT EEEENREANGEEEREN
HEHATE S R

auk
[ak]
0

=z
=

(i) WEZERAUNETRREEE DEER
AEEE B URRAFA RS B
RAERRE DR TS HEENER TEE
&

s EEMBEAEBEARGI  THHFHREZELEHE
RERLGNESTRAETHEE  EEZERE
REBSEANENRISMTA: 25 8E
ERERARIA/RAIAR  ZERISTEY
HOBRRBBFRBERTE -

Lo AREBETERE IR ZBTR BB
REBESRERKEN  UEHERARSE —HE

A o
REAEER-_Z__F=A=+—H2ZKEE
EE EABIABITSERANEENEBEH

D

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)”

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification
of liabilities as current or non- current, which:

e specify that the classification of liabilities as current or
non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period.

Specifically, the amendments to clarify that:

(i) the classification should not be affected by
management intentions or expectations to settle

the liabilities within 12 months; and

(i) if the right is conditional on the compliance with
covenants, the right exists if the conditions are
met at the end of the reporting period, even if the
lender does not test compliance until a later date;
and

e clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the
option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by
the transfer of the entity’s own equity instruments,
these terms do not affect its classification as current or
non-current only if the entity recognises the option
separately as an equity instrument applying HKAS 32

“Financial Instruments: Presentation”.

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKSA 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 March

2022, the application of the amendments will not result in
reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

ERAFTERMBRELEN (EFEMBHREE
Al RAERT & (&)

BEREHEAFIRRERNBRELEANERERE
25 Z BRI AR B BRI E

BB ENEIRBITAUERSTRRER |H
RIEBEFERE|—ANFAERR - MERERYK
BERAHMEN —HZE  STHRRENTUSER
HErEBRAUBEBRRNEIECAEREZSMBR®
RIFEHIRE  AIZEHBRENBEK -

ZEBTATRE  ESRFBLFREKR - BER
HEXZME AtbBERER - SFFHEERDA
BEX- R UFMEHREARS HEBEHIE
REENEAHEERNASNBERK - i —HERE
ERBEFEASHBREN  AHRENTHEREERXN
B BERER -

BBYBREENERREF2RMEHEREHE]
(TEBHE ) FEMEET - USBH—BER NG T
THEFGEAMRE | EAREHABRRBERAESR
H-HETRRNENE AN BRRRETEBEXR -8B
BHRECEMEEERREDN -

ERZEETAERITEHAEEPBERAARRE
SEAFE BURESELAEEZTESHEEZR
B -AHERYE (WA ERBRAEENRENHE
HRPFUKE -

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2
“Disclosure of Accounting Policies”

HKAS 1 is amended to replace all instances of the term
"significant accounting policies" with "material accounting
policy information". Accounting policy information is
material if, when considered together with other
information included in an entity’s financial statements, it
can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make

on the basis of those financial statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy
information may be material because of the nature of the
related transactions, other events or conditions, even if the
amounts are immaterial. However, not all accounting
policy information relating to material transactions, other
events or conditions is itself material. If an entity chooses to
disclose immaterial accounting policy information, such
information must not obscure material accounting policy

information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the "Practice Statement") is also amended to illustrate how
an entity applies the "four-step materiality process" to
accounting policy disclosures and to judge whether
information about an accounting policy is material to its
financial statements. Guidance and examples are added to

the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the financial position or performance
of the Group but may affect the disclosures of the Group's
significant accounting policies. The impacts of application,
if any, will be disclosed in the Group's future consolidated

financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—_F=F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022
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2. BAFIERVMBHRERN(EEBMBREE
Al RAERT & (&)

BRI ERESR 2B AR EF AT 2ER]

ZETAERE AR FEAETAME RN
BHER2EBSHE] S BRRTEREHAERH
PEENUBHRROEBETTE NS HREARE
REREEECHETENABRREEATEEBREMA
FORG - RULBERT  —HEREREST G
EREEIETHRAINER - EBREAETEER
ARBRHAEASFENERED A BT HRE -

o ER ST ERESRNE T M EENRST
LIRE  HEBE—-DFF -

FHERZETAHAEBRE VB BRRBEENE
REE -

BREMENEREHE-—XZHELZEERE
BEBZIEESH ] 2B A

ZIERT B BETTERE 2RI AEHR (T BBET
ERIE125% ) B15R24RPIELE TS A ERIELEFT
SHEENEIARREE  EETBEAREDILHE
RAEELERSHNERGRTENERTEERZRS -

BUREMBHRRMEIFNE  YREEREREMN
REHGRZEERS - AEEUHREEREEER
FEREBETENF R ZAE -EEREERAE
HEE 2 B E R DUSREEEITIIM ©

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 “Definition of Accounting
Estimates”

The amendments define accounting estimates as "monetary
amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty". An accounting policy may
require items in financial statements to be measured in a
way that involves measurement uncertainty — that is, the
accounting policy may require such items to be measured
at monetary amounts that cannot be observed directly and
must instead be estimated. In such a case, an entity
develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective
set out by the accounting policy. Developing accounting
estimates involves the use of judgements or assumptions

based on the latest available, reliable information.

In addition, the concept of changes in accounting estimates

in HKAS 8 is retained with additional clarifications.

The application of the amendments is not expected to have
significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 "Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction"

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption of deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”
(“HKAS 12") so that it no longer applies to transactions
that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and

deductible temporary differences.

As disclosed in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements, for leasing transactions in which the tax
deductions are attributable to the lease liabilities, the
Group applies HKAS 12 requirements to the relevant assets
and liabilities as a whole. Temporary differences relating to

relevant assets and liabilities are assessed on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12 "Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction"
(continued)

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group will
recognise a deferred tax asset (to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary difference can be utilised) and a
deferred tax liability for all deductible and taxable
temporary differences associated with the right-of-use assets

and the lease liabilities.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with early
application permitted. As at 31 March 2022, the carrying
amounts of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities which are
subject to the amendments amounted to HK$7,389,000 (net
of impairment of HK$3,859,000) and HK$19,761,000,
respectively. The Group is still in the process of assessing

the full impact of the application of the amendments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—_F=F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

3.

REMBBRZEFHEERERSHBR

3.1

REMBBERZEHEE

REMBBRRCRREBSHMDASHM2EE
MBMELRFARS - RFFE S BHRRZE
MmE EASEANZEENSRETERER
B2RR ZEZERAURGRRBELR - 1IN &
BUBBRRT S EEERBAXZMERAA
HHEELMRUREBARRIIFRE 2BEERE
BIF o

ERHAGEMBEREE  ERAEER ===
FZAZtT-RAZRBAEBRHERDEEY
8,338,000 Bt EECHEERAEMEZ KRR
RBEE -

BE-Z-__F=A=+—HLFE FrEEHE
ERERSRNELNT,598,0008 L  R=ZFT ==
F=ZA=+—B  rEEFERERREZEY
G #914,424,000/8 7T A K AT E) A 2 AR BY 4R AT
BEE#51,756,0005% 7T ©

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors have given careful consideration to the
future liquidity of the Group in light of the fact that
the Group’s current liabilities exceeded its current
assets by approximately HK$8,338,000 as at 31 March
2022.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group
generated operating cash flows of approximately
HK$1,598,000. As at 31 March 2022, total cash and
cash equivalents of approximately HK$14,424,000
were held by the Group and unutilised bank facilities
amounted to approximately HK$51,756,000 were

available.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements (continued)

Based on the aforesaid factors and cash flow forecast
for the coming twelve months, the Directors have, at
the time of approving the consolidated financial
statements, a reasonable expectation that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they
continue to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the consolidated financial

statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the
investment properties and leasehold land and
buildings, which are measured at fair values or
revalued amounts at the end of each reporting period,

as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of

the consideration given in exchange for goods and

services.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 "Share-based Payment", leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 "Inventories" or value

in use in HKAS 36 "Impairment of Assets".

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and

best use.

For investment properties and land and buildings held
for own use which are transacted at fair value and a
valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to be
used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of

the valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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HE-ZT

—ZF=A=T—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.1

3.2

Annual Report 2022 42 ¥4 #

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the entity can access at the measurement

date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the

asset or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights

(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the

extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. For each business combination, the Group
can elect to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests'
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable

assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income as an allocation of
the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the

owners of the Company.
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3.

HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)
Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are

made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less

impairment losses.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which
are owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These
include land held for a currently undetermined future

use.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any indirectly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair value, adjusted to
exclude any prepaid or accrued operating lease
income. Gains or losses arising from a change in fair
value or from the retirement or disposal of an
investment property is recognised in profit or loss for

the period in which they arise.

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, the interest is classified and
accounted for as an investment property on a

property-by-property basis.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment
The land held for own use and buildings thereon are
stated at their revalued amount, being their fair value
at the date of the revaluation less any subsequent

accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets does
not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of the

reporting period.

Other items of property, plant and equipment are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses.

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties held
for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in the property revaluation

reserve. The only exceptions are as follows:

° when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be
charged to profit or loss to the extent that it
exceeds the amount held in the reserve in respect
of that same asset immediately prior to the

revaluation; and

e when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or

loss.
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3.

HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

If a property becomes an investment property because
its use has changed as evidenced by end of
owner-occupation, any difference between the
carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the
date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation
reserve. On the subsequent sale or retirement of the
property, the relevant revaluation reserve will be

transferred directly to accumulated losses.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred
from the property revaluation reserve to accumulated

losses and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives

as follows:

Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated
over the shorter of the unexpired terms of lease and
their estimated useful lives, being 50 years from the

date of completion.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Leasehold improvements ~ Over the shorter of 5
years and the period of
the lease

Plant and machinery 10 years

Furniture and fixtures 5 to 10 years

Computer and office 3 to 5 years
equipment
Motor vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Ownership interests in leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at

initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is
presented as "right-of-use assets" in the consolidated
statement of financial position except for those that
are classified and accounted for as investment
properties under the fair value model. When the
consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are

classified as property, plant and equipment.

Annual Report 2022 4 4 #t



3.

o)

3.2

MBEBRZEHNEERETESTHRE(F)

FTEEEE (&)

#HE

HEHEZE

i &N BBRMAEMS TE RSB RES TH
HMEECANER  AZeBRIBEHE -

RRBREAE BN BRELERE 6 AHRZ
RITVHERREEBESHMELENSHMS -
REBRBEF BV HEREEDNE165RHERNE
% B A MRKE R (RAESEME) 5 &
ZENREBRIBEHE - BRFESHNRRR
RUEEREBREE  BAAESHS T TERT
fly

AL EEBABA
BEAREIREREMBD
HREEHERS UR-—BARZBEAMERIFHE
BEHINENME @ AEBRBEEEI 2 HEE
BYBHRRFEENR I NBLERBELSHONK
BEIREZHERD -

SEAEE AR B E AR 0 0 BRI FE R HL b3 A 22 A
N

Annual Report 2022 42 ¥4 #

Ao 7 S 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.

HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16 or arising from
business combinations, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the

contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease

components.
Non-lease components are separated from lease

component and are accounted for by applying other

applicable standards.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Short-term leases
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of carpark spaces and certain
retail stores that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option. Lease payments on short-term
leases are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives

received;

e any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located or
restoring the underlying asset to the condition

required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities
other than adjustments to lease liabilities resulting
from Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the

Group applied practical expedient.
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3.

HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and

the lease term.
The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial

position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 "Financial Instruments" ("HKFRS 9") and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of

right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest

rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

and

e payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an

option to terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are not included in the measurement of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are
recognised as expense in the period in which the

event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are

adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use

assets) whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option,
in which case the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the date

of reassessment.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

e the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent
review, in which case the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease

payments using the initial discount rate.
The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial

position.

Lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which
the Group applied the practical expedient, the Group
accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease
if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more

underlying assets; and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect

the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified lease
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the effective date of the

modification.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications (continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the

relevant right-of-use asset.

When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate

stand-alone price of the non-lease components.

Changes in the basis for determining the future lease

payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform
For changes in the basis for determining the future
lease payments as a result of interest rate benchmark
reform, the Group applies the practical expedient to
remeasure the lease liabilities by discounting the
revised lease payments using the unchanged discount
rate and makes a corresponding adjustment to the
related right-of-use assets. A lease modification is
required by interest rate benchmark reform if, and

only if, both of these conditions are met:

e The modification is necessary as a direct
consequence of interest rate benchmark reform;

and

e The new basis for determining the lease payments
is economically equivalent to the previous basis
(i.e. the basis immediately preceding the

modification).
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3.

HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a
direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the
Group has elected to apply the practical expedient not
to assess whether the change is a lease modification if

all of the following conditions are met:

e the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for

the lease immediately preceding the change;

e any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2022; and

e there is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying HKFRS 16 if the changes are not a
lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease
payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted to
reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or

loss in the period in which the event occurs.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term except for
investment properties measured under fair value

model.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 "Revenue
from Contracts with Customers" ("HKFRS 15") to
allocate consideration in a contract to lease and
non-lease components. Non-lease components are
separated from lease component on the basis of their

relative stand-alone selling prices.
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3.

—ZF=A=T—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are

considered as additional lease payments from lessees.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant
cash-generating unit when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent
allocation basis can be established. The recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit or
group of cash-generating units to which the corporate
asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group
of cash-generating units.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) for which the estimates of future

cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate
assets which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts
of the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of
cash-generating units. In allocating the impairment
loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been
allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other
assets of the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit

or loss.
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HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
(or cash-generating unit or a group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss

is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the

inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale. Cost necessary to make the sale
include incremental costs directly attributable to the
sale and non-incremental costs which the Group must

incur to make the sale.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised. The
amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-down
or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All regular
way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention

in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are
initially measured in accordance with HKFRS 15.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value
of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as

appropriate, on initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income and
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts and payments (including all fees
and points paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the financial asset or financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets
Financial assets that meet the following conditions are

subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash

flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of

financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to
the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no

longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss ("ECL") model on financial assets
(including deposits paid, trade and other receivables
and bank balances) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in

credit risk since initial recognition.
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3.

HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m
ECL") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed

individually.

For all other financial assets, ECL is measured at 12m
ECL unless there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, in which case the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of
whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on
significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i¥ B B 4 [ A [ 2 #

95



96

Ao 7 S 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that

is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk

has increased significantly:

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the financial instrument’s
external (if available) or internal credit

rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit

default swap prices for the debtor;

* existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its

debt obligations;
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MBBRRZEFANEERETES T EER (F) 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FTESTBE () 3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

THT A (&) Financial instruments (continued)

THRIEE (&) Financial assets (continued)

SR E E R RE (F) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
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(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

e an actual or expected significant
deterioration in the operating results of the
debtor; and

e an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environments of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk and
revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes

past due.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any

collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion

is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data

about the following events:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

the borrower;

e a breach of contract, such as a default or

past due event;
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SO RZEIEELRTESTHE (&) 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 FESFBER (#) 3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
S2HT A (&) Financial instruments (continued)
THEE (%) Financial assets (continued)
ERMEENRE (F) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i) EERBEEREE (&) (iii) Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)
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The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no
realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when
the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s
recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries

are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is
determined with the respective risks of default

occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate

determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised

cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by
adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a

loss allowance account.
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3.

HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds

received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other
payables and borrowings) are subsequently measured

at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire. On derecognition of a financial asset measured
at amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration

received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when and
only when the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised

in profit or loss.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when "control"
of the goods or services underlying the particular

performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are

substantially the same.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria

is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s

performance as the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group

performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good

or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of

consideration is due) from the customer.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Government grants
Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants

will be received.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable. Such

grants are presented under "other income".

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these

amounts are stated at their present values.
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HMEBRRZEHEERFTEGSHBUR (&) 3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FTESTBE () 3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

B3 ® Income tax
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Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting
period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect

of previous years.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from

unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that
will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss (from which the deferred tax asset
arises) can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are
taken into account if they relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are
expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in which

the tax loss or credit can be utilised.
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3.

HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or
liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable
profit (provided they are not part of a business
combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is

probable that they will reverse in the future.

Where investment properties are carried at their fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy set out
above, the amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured using the tax rates that would apply on sale
of those assets at their carrying value at the reporting
date unless the property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale. In all other cases, the amount of deferred
tax recognised is measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are

not discounted.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)
For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the
right-of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions are
attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease

liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed
on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use
assets over the lease payments for the principal
portion of lease liabilities results in net deductible

temporary differences.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that

sufficient taxable profits will be available.
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3.

HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)
Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the individual
entity or the Group has the legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities

and the following additional conditions are met:

o in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
individual entity or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously; or

o in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if
they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle the
current tax liabilities on a net basis or

realise and settle simultaneously.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present
value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time

value of money is material).

Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are
stated at fair value are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was

measured.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the average
exchange rate for the period unless exchange rate
fluctuate significantly during the period in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Statement of financial position items are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in

equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the
cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to that operation outside Hong Kong is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the

profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or

sale.

Any specific borrowing that remains outstanding after
the related asset is ready for its intended use or sale is
included in the general borrowing pool for calculation
of capitalisation rate on general borrowings.
Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Related parties

(i)

(if)

A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(a)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or
is a member of the key management

personnel of the Group or the Group's

parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(a)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.
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3.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(i)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies: (continued)

(d)

—T-—_F#=FA=1+—HILEE For the year ended 31 March 2022
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One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the

third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the

Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(@) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the

Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are

those family members who may be expected to

influence, or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Segment reporting
Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to
the Group’s senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various geographical

locations.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both

current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial

statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax arising from
investment properties that are measured using the fair value
model, the Directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that certain of the
Group's investment properties are held under a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of
the economic benefits embodied in the investment
properties over time. Therefore, in measuring the Group’s
deferred taxation on investment properties, the Directors
have determined that the presumption that the carrying
amounts of investment properties in Mainland China
measured using the fair value model are recovered entirely
through sale is rebutted. For certain investment properties
in Hong Kong on which the ’sale’ presumption is not
rebutted, the Group has not recognised any deferred tax on
changes in fair value of investment properties in Hong
Kong above the qualified cost as the Group is not subject to
any income taxes on the fair value changes of the
investment properties in Hong Kong above the qualified

cost on disposal.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial

year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of right-of-use assets and property, plant and
equipment

The Group assesses regularly whether right-of-use assets
and property, plant and equipment have any indication of
impairment. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amounts of the cash-generating units to which these assets
belong would be determined by reference to the higher of
their value in use and fair value less costs of disposal.
Value in use is determined using the discounted cash flow
method. Due to inherent risk associated with estimations in
the timing and magnitude of the future cash flows
calculated with certain growth rate as key input and fair
value less costs of disposal, the estimated recoverable
amount of the assets may be different from their actual
recoverable amount and profit or loss could be affected by
the accuracy of the estimations. Furthermore, the cash
flows projections, growth rate and discount rate are subject
to greater uncertainties in the current year due to
uncertainty on how the Covid-19 pandemic may progress
and evolve and volatility in financial markets, including

potential disruptions in the Group's retail operations.

Valuation of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to ageing analysis of
inventories and historical consumption trends. Based on
this review, write-down of inventories will be made when
the estimated net realisable value of inventories decline
below their carrying amounts. Due to changes in market
trends, actual consumption may be different from
estimation and profit or loss could be affected by accuracy

of this estimation.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Valuation of investment properties and land and buildings
held for own use

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties and
land and buildings held for own use are calculated by an
independent firm of qualified professional property valuers
by making reference to the capitalisation rate and
comparable market transactions. The valuation models used
by the property valuer make use of market inputs. Should
changes be made to the market inputs, the corresponding
valuation of investment properties and land and buildings

held for own use would change.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue

The Group generated sales of fashion apparel and
accessories with customers mainly through its own retail
stores. For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021,
revenue from sales of fashion apparel and accessories is
recognised at a point in time when the goods are delivered

to the customers.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Revenue (continued)

Performance obligations for contracts with customers
Revenue from sales of fashion apparel and accessories is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being
at the point when the customer purchases and takes the
goods at the retail stores directly or when the goods have
been transported to the customers' specified location
(delivery). Transportation and other related activities that
incurred before customers obtain control of the related
products are considered as fulfilment activities. Payment of
the transaction price is generally due immediately at the
point the customer purchases the goods in the retail stores.
The transaction price received by the Group for goods that
require delivery is recognised as a contract liability until
the goods have been delivered to the customer.

Customer loyalty programme

The Group operates a customer loyalty programme for sales
through the Group’s retail stores where customers
accumulate award points for purchases made which entitle
them to redeem award points as sales discounts in the
future. The transaction price is allocated to the product and
the award points on a relative stand-alone selling price
basis. The award points expire every year and customers
can redeem the award points any time before the specified
expiration date. Revenue from the award points is
recognised when the award points are used or expired.
Contract liabilities, presented under “accrued charges”, are
recognised until the award points are used or expired. The

sales discount is recognised against revenue.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contracts with customers

Contracts with customers with unsatisfied performance
obligations, including award points under the customer
loyalty programme, have original expected durations of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction
prices allocated to these unsatisfied performance
obligations or customer loyalty programme are not

disclosed.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment information

The Group manages its businesses by geographical
locations. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
presented the following two reportable segments. No
operating segments have been aggregated to form the

following reportable segments.

e The Hong Kong operation represents the sales of house

brands and imported brands in Hong Kong.

e The outside Hong Kong operation represents the
manufacture of house brands in Mainland China and
sales of house brands and imported brands in

Mainland China, Macau, Taiwan and Singapore.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the results attributable to

each reportable segment on the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation of assets

attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reportable segment loss is loss from
operations with the exclusion of other income, other gains
and losses and certain administrative and other operating
expenses. Income tax is not allocated to reportable

segments.
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment information (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities of the Group are not reported
to the Group’s senior executive management. As a result,
reportable segment assets and liabilities have not been

presented in the financial statements.

ATERIV ST RREMAIMAANEE 2S5t The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
BURAER e same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3.
3 EBEN AT2HHA
Hong Kong Outside Hong Kong  Total reportable segments
—E-_"f —E-_-F —F--F —_E-_-F —F--E —_E-_-F
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
TER TET ThR TER TER THET
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
MREF W Revenue from external customers 58,552 55,305 79,974 71,978 138,526 127,283
72 EE K& Inter-segment revenue 18,006 13,807 17,931 10,195 35,937 24,002
ka6 Segment revenue 76,558 69,112 97,905 82,173 174,463 151,285
FBEE Segment loss (2,823) (9,518) (17,243) (19,158) (20,066) (28,676)
Rt BABEERTA
TEHEAEE SR Amount regularly provided to the Group’s
THEBABREZ senior executive management included in
S5 the measurement of segment results:
NE BERSENE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 520 136 1,097 314 1,617 450
FHEEENE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 17,949 23,948 14,963 14,666 32,912 38,614
NE BERREZ Impairment losses on property, plant and
HEEE  NREE equipment, net of reversal 38 5 1,128 1,592 1,166 1,597
EREEEZHERFE  Impairment losses on right-of-use assets, net
NEER of reversal 200 2,862 3,859 9,326 4,059 12,188

DEBRSE IR ETWHE 2 SR HE -

Annual Report 2022 42 ¥4 #

Inter-segment revenue is charged at amounts agreed by

both parties.
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5. WERDAER (F)

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

DEBE R (4F) Segment information (continued)
7 BB 55 R R A& 2 B R Reconciliation of segment revenue and results
—E_— —E-—F
2022 2021
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Iy & Revenue
7 #B 2 B Total segment revenue 174,463 151,285
7 5P [ Uk 2= ¥ 8 Elimination of inter-segment revenue (35,937) (24,002)
138,526 127,283
DEPEIE Segment loss (20,066) (28,676)
ROEYE BERRBITE Unallocated depreciation of property, plant
and equipment (12,053) (11,730)
AOMERABEENRE Unallocated depreciation of right-of-use
assets (1,078) (293)
ROBMHE  BER Unallocated impairment losses on property,
RERERE - fBRED plant and equipment, net of reversal (273) (1,837)
ROMEFEEERERSE Unallocated impairment losses on
B #E O right-of-use assets, net of reversal (2,452) (5,785)
Hit R BB X Other unallocated expenses (34,717) (25,149)
HWA R &t REE Other income and other gains and losses 26,170 44,392
REMELAREEHZ Gain on changes in fair value of
I & investment properties 5,984 14,319
BE A Finance costs (2,510) (4,838)
BRI ATE 1B Loss before taxation (40,995) (19,597)
o EE R Geographic information
TREIERONAEBI AT WG RIDAEER The following table sets out information about the
EVE X BERRBUREAREE (HEF geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from
REBEE|) 2HBENBEER - BRF BN EIRIE external customers; and (ii) the Group’s investment
INERZVEEE - EEHFRBDEEZHIBENET) properties, property, plant and equipment, and right-of-use
REBEECERNE MBREWEURYE - KE assets ("specified non-current assets"). The geographical
REFEMF) REEHE (HEERAREE) MEE - location of customers is based on the location at which the

goods were delivered. The geographical location of the
specified non-current assets is based on the physical
location of the asset in the case of investment properties
and property, plant and equipment, and the location of

operations in the case of right-of-use assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

DEBE R (. Segment information (continued)
EEF () Geographic information (continued)
HNREF W EEFRBDEE
Revenue from Specific
external customers non-current assets
—E-—F —E-—F —E-—F —E-—F
2022 2021 2022 2021
FERT FTER FERT FER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
s Hong Kong 58,552 55,305 417,257 493,089
B Macau 22,095 14,720 4,802 5,676
HE A i Mainland China 42,914 40,616 212,240 212,229
BE Taiwan 12,967 14,174 = =
N3 Singapore 1,998 2,468 = =
79,974 71,978 217,042 217,905
138,526 127,283 634,299 710,994
EHTEEFZEH Information about major customers

BE-—ES-_—FER-_S-_—F=-A=+—HIFE"
BMERBE-—IREFZURLAEBRREZETEZ
10%3% BA £ o

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, there
was no single external customer that contributed 10% or

more of the Group's total revenue.
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HE-T-—_F=F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

6. HlA 6. OTHER INCOME

—E_C —E-—F

2022 2021

THET FTET

HK$’000 HK$’000

REYERS W AEZE Gross rental income from investment

properties 4,898 4,566

RITERZFE WA Interest income from bank deposits 20 124

RBE WA Service fee income 1,018 696

20198 MESHERAZHESER Covid-19 related rent concessions 10,082 19,677

BT %5 B (B E) Government grants (Note) 1,457 7,310

Hith Others 190 232

17,665 32,605
Mk : RAFEE  AEBF20198 MBS HEEERE Note: During the current year, the Group recognised government
R B AEE,457,0008 Tt (Z 2= — & ¢ grants of HK$1,457,000 (2021: HK$7,310,000) in respect of
7,310,000/ 7T) » & #1194,000% Jt B2 & 8 BT Covid-19 related subsidies, of which HK$194,000 relates to
TRt cEEEFEAEBEB (=T —F: Distance Business Programme (2021: HK$4,667,000 and
4,667,00078 7T K% 1,200,000 Jt 7 5 B2 4R T £ 5 HK$1,200,000 related to Employment Support Scheme and
EIRTEXEEERA) Retail Sector Subsidy Scheme, respectively) provided by the

Hong Kong government.
7. Bz RERE 7. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

—E_C —E-—F

2022 2021

THET FET

HK$’000 HK$’000

RELLHEESH 2 WHE Gain on early termination of lease contracts 9,220 9,280

[E 5 (F518) s F 5 Exchange (loss) gain, net (886) 2,427

HEME - BERRE2WE Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 171 80
8,505 11,787
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HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

INCOME TAX CREDIT (EXPENSE)

—E=-= —E-—F
2022 2021
THER FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
AEABLIE —F B IR Current tax — Outside Hong Kong
NEERE Provision for the year (259) (259)
IEIE TS HE Deferred tax 307 (3,349)
FreBiig % (BA2) Income tax credit (expense) 48 (3,608)

REEEMAFHFNSEHEHE CEKEEERE
2,000,000 Tt B R RAG 328.25% M B R EH - mBEB
2,000,000 7T K= F BI3Z16.5% M EEE - FFE
MARFFEHEHENEEER GG EEIR6.5%
N —HEGH - EERA > MARGFESHEFES
EMIPREBEHAECVERRMSETEKR
I REMEFE  EEBLEEBNHBLARER
B ERBREFIZ16.5%TEEBREH o

RIBEFHERETEBOE ([REREH ) RIEXRE
EBERKG > PEABHELARMEFENRES
25% °

Annual Report 2022 42 ¥4 #

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime of Hong Kong
Profits Tax, the first HK$2,000,000 of profits of a qualifying
group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above
HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group
entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.
The Directors consider the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Accordingly, Hong Kong Profits Tax for subsidiaries
operating in Hong Kong is calculated at 16.5% of the

estimated assessable profit for both years.
Under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax ("EIT")

and Implementation Regulation of the EIT law, the tax rate

of Mainland China subsidiaries is 25% for both years.
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Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥

FERER (BAX) (&)

P 4 75 B T B s 32,0008 P 7T (F8E 7431,00058
7) {B{E 7300,00052 9 7t (18E 1291,00058 7T ) (Y FE
RBWAEN F3%EI%NBERZEBHM MESS
FHAREERZNRLAR BE-_ZE_—_FR=-F
T—H=ZA=t+-—HLEE  BEMRBFETHEIFR
B & e - FEERB UL A B & %58 £600,00002 9 T
(#8E 582,000/ 5t) * #H600,00002 T (HE R
582,000 7t ) MY FEER B % Fl Bl 3% B B B R 12 % MW B o

REMBEEREE (BIEAEBRIMME) EE2HRIETIE
HEREER 2 RITHEFE RBE-ZTE=-_F=
B=1T—HLEE URRERFIMNEZHWEATZ
BRABEDRRI7%(ZFE=—F 1 17%) R17% (=
BEZ—F 1 17%) °

MRIEBEAR R TRAIAEEERAEBRFERAM
ZOEBECEE—EELFT A=+ —HZEEEZ
EAEEZ 2 IRIR10%EHMTENR - ARAEE
FENELEIHEBIMALZHMBLAREESE
BE > METERFENFEER 2 EMNRRER5% °
EERA AEEEZEVESRSIREZSERR - T
DER S RZERE BREN 2BBRZDELMER
8 1&7,256,0008 T (ZZ=—4% : 6,847,000 L) °

INCOME TAX CREDIT (EXPENSE) (continued)

Macau Complementary Tax is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 3% to 9% on the taxable income above
MOP32,000 (equivalent to HK$31,000) but below
MOP300,000 (equivalent to HK$291,000), and thereafter at
a fixed rate of 12%. For the years ended 31 March 2022
and 2021, a special complementary tax incentive was
provided to the effect that the tax free income threshold
was MOP600,000 (equivalent to HK$582,000) with profit
above MOP600,000 (equivalent to HK$582,000) being

taxed at a fixed rate of 12%.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions including Taiwan and
Singapore is calculated at the rate prevailing in the relevant
jurisdictions. During the year ended 31 March 2022, the
applicable tax rates for subsidiaries domiciled in Taiwan
and Singapore are 17% (2021: 17%) and 17% (2021: 17%)

respectively.

The Group is subject to withholding tax at a rate of 10%
(unless reduced by treaty) on distribution of profits
generated after 31 December 2007 from the Group’s
foreign-invested enterprises in Mainland China. As all of
the Group’s foreign-invested enterprises are directly and
wholly owned by Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries, a
reduced rate of 5% is applicable in the calculation of this
withholding tax. Deferred tax liabilities of HK$7,256,000
(2021: HK$6,847,000) have not been recognised in respect
of the tax that would be payable on the distribution of
these retained profits since, in the opinion of the Directors,
these earnings are not intended to be distributed in the

foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

8. INCOME TAX CREDIT (EXPENSE) (continued)

FRMAEHES (BAX) HEGSERER A2 E K The income tax credit (expense) for the year can be

RIFBMORBAIBBYIROT ¢

reconciled to the loss before taxation per the consolidated

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

as follows:
—E_C —E-—F
2022 2021
TER THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BRELATE 1B Loss before taxation (40,995) (19,597)
BRERBERBRERERS Notional tax at tax rates applicable to losses
BENEARE in the tax jurisdictions concerned
AEZEEBE 6,695 3,936
TAMEXH 2 HBEEZE Tax effect of non-deductible expenses (1,436) (304)
BAFHRBAZBBZE Tax effect of non-taxable income 1,392 2,085
AEZFMEREBR 2R EZE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (8,947) (7,585)
FRNEBAMEHREREZ Tax effect of tax losses utilised during the
BB year 1,480 4,314
AERANRGRBEEEZ Tax effect of deductible temporary
s E differences not recognised (881) (6,054)
BALAARBEIZTHKRERER Utilisation of deductible temporary
differences previously not recognised 1,520 =
HEZRERRAREKEZR Reversal of taxable temporary differences
upon disposal 225 =
48 (3,608)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—_F=F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

9. FAEE
FREESHER (FTA) THEE :

9. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

Loss for the year is arrived at after charging (crediting):

—E_— —E_-_—F
2022 2021
THERT THERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT A Staff costs
EEE (FfFsE10) Directors’ remuneration (note 10) 8,503 5,611
Hih & TR A Other staff costs
HE  HFMREMER Salaries, wages and other benefits 54,631 51,449
RE MR EIER Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan 4,319 2,951
BTRALHE Total staff costs 67,453 60,011
R E BT B & Auditors’ remuneration 760 1,300
NE BMERRENE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 13,670 12,180
FREEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 33,990 38,907
ME BMERREZHEEIE  Impairment losses on property, plant and
(GFASEERE - D8R equipment (included in cost of sales,
SHERXURITHEE distribution and selling expenses and
Hitb E&ER<A) FH administrative and other operating
expenses), net 1,439 3,434
EREEE 2RERE Impairment loss on right-of-use assets
(GFADSERHER UK (included in distribution and selling
TERREMKEMZR) FE expenses and administrative and other
operating expenses), net 6,511 17,973
REVEZHERARERE Rental income from investment properties
% H1238,0007% T less direct outgoings of HK$238,000
(ZZ=—% :311,000/& T) (2021: HK$311,000) (4,660) (4,255)
BABRX2FERSE Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 41,920 40,378
RITEERE Interests on bank borrowings 1,058 1,149
HEBBEZFE Interests on lease liabilities 1,452 3,689
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BRAHAZCFERNEREIRARITEERB 2
8,294,000 T (= ZE=—% : 7,571,000 ) * BE
HETGTASZERIRAMTBIRE2SBEE
Moo

BEERFETHAEMS
ARABRES (BREETHRALE) 2ENHENSEE
H;H T :

BE-Z-_—_HS=ZA=+—HLFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

9. LOSS FOR THE YEAR (continued)
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense includes
HK$8,294,000 (2021: HK$7,571,000) relating to staff costs
and depreciation, which amount is also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately in this note

for each of these expenses.
10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors of

the Company, including the chief executive, are as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2022

2 =41
RENEF R
Salaries, ST EIRR
allowances [SRERCAN Retirement
#€  and benefits  Discretionary scheme @t
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
TER TER TET TERT TER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
HITEE Executive directors
REE Mr. Chan - 5,915 - 18 5,933
frzt Ms. Tsui - 3,575 - 18 3,593
[EHN Chan Sze Chun = 429 = 18 447
BUHHTEE Independent non-executive
directors
RE¥ Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 90 - - - 90
FNZac Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 90 - - - 90
BERE Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 90 - - - 90
270 9,919 - 54 10,243
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10. EERFETHRAEME (&)

BE-ZE-_—F=A=1+—HILEE

10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS
(continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2021

E230 =
RENEF RIK
Salaries, SRR
allowances MisiE4 Retirement
¥4  and benefits  Discretionary scheme st
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
TER TER TER TER TER
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HITEE Executive directors
Rt Mr. Chan - 3,937 - 18 3,955
that Ms. Tsui - 2,369 - 18 2,387
RE®R Chan Sze Chun = 445 = 18 463
BUHHTEZE  Independent non-executive
directors
RE¥ Yu Yuk Ying, Vivian 90 - = = 90
PN Chu Chun Kit, Sidney 90 - - - 90
ENR Wong Shuk Ying, Helen 90 - = = 90
270 6,751 - 54 7,075

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥
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10. EERFETHRAEMS (& 10. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS

e EUHRBEYENEENESREZEBEYEZ
mEFE$£1,740,0008 T (ZF = —F : 1,464,000

JT) °

RTEEZRBRADKESELREE 2 EEARET -
TEREEEHE -

REETARRA ZEBTHRAL » KRR LA E
ZHECBRRESETETRASRERE ZME -

EXFRBTESHMEERREREERQARAREE
EEBAMEERB2HME -

EXFRBY A TES LM EEAREREESH
RERBME -

REEFER AEEHEZ VM FEEFERTBE
HEMBRAEESAMBEF RS ABEB@EE - F
N HITESREE RLETRREBEEEHER
E2ETHE €% 55 H144,0008 T (ZF = —
% 11,980,000 L) ~ 79,0008 T (Z T = —F :
1,080,000 jt) &360,000& T (ZF = — F :
360,000/ 7T) - EMBEFER » WERBIIFHTES
BEEAME -
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(continued)

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind include an
amount of HK$1,740,000 (2021: HK$1,464,000) which
represents the market rental value of own properties

provided to Directors.

The discretionary bonuses to the Directors are determined
by reference to the Group’s performance and approved by

the board of directors.

Mr. Chan is also the chief executive of the Company and
his emoluments disclosed above include those for services

rendered by him as the chief executive officer.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were for
their services in connection with the management of the

affairs of the Company and the Group.

The emoluments of the independent non-executive

directors shown above were for their services as Directors.

During both years, no emoluments was paid by the Group
to the Directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. During the
year, the executive directors, Mr. Chan, Ms. Tsui and
Mr. Chan Sze Chun have waived certain of their
emoluments amounted to HK$144,000 (2021:
HK$1,980,000), HK$79,000 (2021: HK$1,080,000) and
HK$360,000 (2021: HK$360,000) respectively. None of the
independent non-executive directors has waived any

emoluments in both years.
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11. AEEEHE AL 11.
AUBEMEALH  MA(CE-—F W) ES
ZMEEAME10/ELEIRE - HB = (== —F:
SEN)ATZHMERENT

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2021: two) are Directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 10. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of

the other three (2021: three) individuals are as follows:

—E_— —EBE_—F
2022 2021
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000

e EZMREMBEYEF Salaries, allowances and
other benefits in kind 5,350 4,364
BB TE 4T Discretionary bonuses 200 200
BARE I Retirement scheme contributions 41 140
5,591 4,704

ZE (== —F:
SIEER

ZU)MERSALTZMEET

The emoluments of the three (2021: three) individuals with

the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

AE
Number of individuals
—E__ —E-—F
2022 2021
1,000,001 7t —1,500,0005% T HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1 1
1,500,001 7T —2,000,00078 JT HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 1 2
2,500,001 7T - 3,000,000 7T HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 1 -

RS
REBE-_Z__FR-_F-_-F=A=1+-RALFE
B WEEARQ R EBRRRKAREKEAR
B REREPAREL N RRBEIMRE -

12.

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥

12. DIVIDENDS
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary
shareholders of the Company during the years ended 31
March 2022 and 2021, nor has any dividend been

proposed since the end of the reporting periods.
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13. BRER 13. LOSS PER SHARE
ARARFEEAEBEEREAEBIRE AT 8B The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to
g5 the owners of the Company is based on the following data:
ER Loss
—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
THET FTHEx
HK$’000 HK$'000
AUt EEREREEZ Loss for the year for the purpose of
FERNEE calculating basic loss per share (40,718) (22,751)
RGEE Number of shares
—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
F& TR
000 ‘000
RUGtEEREAXEEZ Weighted average number of ordinary shares for
LBER NI the purpose of calculating basic loss per share 287,930 287,930
HRARARAMEFELEEMESTEIZEBR Diluted loss per share is not presented as the Company

- Bt B2 55 RIEBEESS -

years.

does not have any dilutive potential ordinary share for both
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14. YE BERREUERREYE 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES
BB
KB BHR
BB BAEER
KRR kRE
THREEN Furniture,
Land and fixtures, ng BE
buildings computer FESEN
held for TI#£E  and office LS Sub-total
owWn Use R#&H  equipment B of property, RENE
carried at Plant and and motor Leasehold plantand  Investment @it
fair value machinery vehicles  improvements equipment properties Total

TERL TEL TR Tk TER TiER TERL
HK$000 HK$/000 HK$000. HK$000 HK$/000 HK$000. HK$000

HAGE: Cost or valuation:
RZEZEEMA-A At 1 April 2020 368,608 3,208 22,357 35,564 429,817 259,598 089,415
ERf% Exchange adjustments 1,844 89 214 503 2,650 552 3,02
BE Additions - 5 310 3,980 4,295 11,025 15,320
HE /s D\'sposals/write-off - (2,051) (2,602) (10,288) (14,941) - (14,941)
HIBREENERZRENE  Transfer from land and buildings to

investment properties (12,289) - - - (12,289) 12,289 -
EfES Surplus on revaluation 30,400 - = - 30,400 = 30,400
B ERHEERTE Less: Elimination of accumulated

depreciation on revaluation (11,595) - - - (11,595) - (11,595)

REZZDEADAEEM  Increase in fair value recognised

in profit or loss = = = = = 14319 14319

RZBZ-£=A=1+-AK  At31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021

“E--EMA-A 377,028 1,251 20,279 29,779 428,337 297,783 726,120
ER@Z Exchange adjustments 3,575 74 180 510 4,339 1,869 6,208
BE Additions = 95 137 2514 2,746 - 2,746
HE /Hi Disposalshwrite-off (29,700) = 81) (7,307) (37,088) (54,720) (91,808)
BEEY Surplus on revaluation 10,138 = = = 10,138 - 10,138
B EfRHERNTE Less: Elimination of accumulated
depreciation on revaluation (11,807) - - - (11,807) - (11,807)

REHEZEEADAEEM  Increase in fair value recognised
in profit or loss - - - - - 5,984 5,984
RZE--£=fA=1-R At 31 March 2022 349,234 1420 20,515 25,496 396,665 250,916 647,581

& Representing:

B Cost = 1,420 20,515 25,496 47,431 - 47,431
fhE Valuation 349,234 = = = 349,234 250,916 600,150
349,34 1420 20,515 25,496 396,665 250,916 647,581
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HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

Bl BE
KB BHR
AR ESIR BAERE
KERRZ kRE
THREEN Furniture,
Land and fixtures, ng BE
buildings computer FESEN
held for I££E  and office HENE Sub-total
owWn Use R#&H  equipment B of property, RENE
carried at Plant and and motor Leasehold plantand  Investment @it
fair value machinery vehicles  improvements equipment properties Total
TR THT THT T THT TET TH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fERAE: Depreciation and impairment;
W=Z-2ERA-A At T April 2020 = 3,208 22,357 32,505 56,090 = 58,090
B Exchange adjustments = 89 172 1,555 1,816 = 1,816
KEENE Charge for the year 11,595 - 63 522 12,180 - 12,180
RERZBRIFEER Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss = 5 289 3,140 3,434 = 3,434
HE /s Disposals/write-off - (2,051) 2,602) (10,288) (14,941) - (14,941)
B Elimination on revaluation (11,595) - - - (11,595 - (11,595)
RIBEZ-E=fA=1-AkK
ZE_-EWB-H At31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021 - 1,251 20,279 27 454 48,984 - 48,984
Ejf% Exchange adjustments - 7 180 380 031 - 631
REERE Charge for the year 11,920 5 7 1,738 13,670 = 13,670
RBEZERIHERE Impairment losses recognised in profit or loss = 93 122 1,24 1439 - 1439
HE /s Disposals/wite-off (113) = (81) (7,307) (7,501) = (7,501)
B{EEHE Elimination on revaluation (11,807) - - - (11,807) - (11,807)
WZBZZEZA=+-A  At31 March 2022 - 1,420 20,507 23,489 45416 - 45,416
REFE: Net book value:
RZE-ZF=f=1-H At 31 March 2022 349,234 - 8 2,007 351,249 250,916 602,165
RZE=-FE=f=1-H At 31 March 2021 377,028 - - 2,325 379,353 297,783 677,136

Annual Report 2022 42 ¥4 #

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i¥ B B 4 [ A [ 2 #

135



Ao 7 S 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-T-—_F=F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

14. Y% BERSEURBEWE (&) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

136

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥

R-ZBE-_—_F=A=+—H8  RE#E%A127,400,000
BT (ZEZ—4 :155,300,0008 ) 2FEBA 2
T RERYRRENECHEBTEEFERER(R
FMsE21) o

R-E-—F<A+N\B-ZZBE=-—-FN\A=H =
E_—F+—A-HR=ZZE=-—-Ft+—H=+xH"
AEEHEBYE=FFIVERBRALEREEE T
% KE2 5 %A30,000,0007% 7T~ 13,880,000
7T~ 21,380,0005% 7T %20,000,00058 T (HES
H]) FRALESENFEINENRART A=
- FNATHAZBRRABA-ZE—_—F)N
AZB -=ZZ2=-—-%+—HA—-BER=Z=—%5+—A8
T+ ARBRZAGE - HEFTEERBE-ZS-__%=A8
E+—HLEFERTHK

E-ZB-FR-ZF-—F EBEBREBEMNE
BREBESSEEHAMBANE THREELENBREE
B BETHEHEYE BMERZEIKEDHE- Bt
EZCENEBYE BRERREZATKREEEE - MW
ZEEECRAECHBRZEHE 2T E £ 58
2,015,000 T (ZF = —4%F : 2,325,000/87T) ° BE
E5181,439,000/8 T (ZE=—F : 3,434,000 T) 2
RERER - IRESENETTDREZSEEENS
ZREeELEENFERERREREI3% (22—
F:13.5%) MEH °

PROPERTIES (continued)

At 31 March 2022, land and buildings held for own use
and investment properties with carrying amounts of
HK$127,400,000 (2021: HK$155,300,000) in aggregate

were pledged against bank borrowings (see note 21).

On 18 June 2021, 2 August 2021, 1 November 2021 and
26 November 2021, the Group entered into provisional
agreements with independent third parties to sell certain of
the Group’s properties at considerations of HK$30,000,000,
HK$13,880,000, HK$21,380,000 and HK$20,000,000,
respectively (the “Disposals”). Details of the Disposals were
set out in the Company’s circular dated 25 August 2021
and announcements dated 2 August 2021, 1 November
2021 and 26 November 2021, respectively. The Disposals
were completed during the year ended 31 March 2022.

In 2022 and 2021, certain cash-generating units, as
identified based on each retail store, of the Hong Kong
operation and outside Hong Kong operation recorded losses
which indicate that the relevant property, plant and
equipment might have been impaired. As a result, the
Directors reviewed the recoverable amount of the relevant
property, plant and equipment and the carrying amount of
such assets was written down to their recoverable amount
of HK$2,015,000 (2021: HK$2,325,000). An impairment
loss of HK$1,439,000 (2021: HK$3,434,000) was
recognised in profit or loss. The estimates of recoverable
amount were based on value in use of the cash-generating
units to which these assets belong at a discount rate of
13.5% (2021: 13.5%).
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MR-ZZT=—5F  E1E12,289,0008 T2 T i REEY)
ERVERAZRESERZREYE  WREZER
TER FMYERBBEEER REERERES
JEEH o

88

AEENEZARETE
RZBZ—ER-F_—F=A=+—0 &~EEY
ECARBEDRBEAEEYERBAEZSEREEY
XHEMPRAZMITERARAR-ZE-__FR_-Z
T—F=RA=1+—HETZHABEREEMSE - NE
EMEBEAYMENDIAER  AEENSRTHRERED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

PROPERTIES (continued)

In 2021, land and buildings to the value of HK$12,289,000
was transferred to investment properties upon a change in
use of the properties as evidenced by the end of owner
occupation and the said properties became held for capital

appreciation and/or rental purposes.

Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties

The fair value of the Group’s properties as at 31 March
2022 and 2021 were arrived at on the basis of valuation
carried out as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 by Centaline
Surveyors Limited, independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers not connected with the
Group. In determining the fair value of the relevant
properties, the Group’s senior executive management has
discussion with the valuer on the appropriate valuation

techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.
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14. ¥ BERRBUARRENE (&

EEBWEZRAETE ()

REBERR  ARENERER
BEIWT :

EERNERF

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties

(continued)

Details of the Group’s properties and information about the

fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period are

as follows:

R-EBE-__—F
=BA=t+-—H
ZRRE
Fair value as
B4 at 31 March
Level 3 2022
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEMAALETE Recurring fair value measurement
REM=E Investment properties:
BB Hong Kong 103,557 103,557
o 79 e Mainland China 147,359 147,359
BFEEBAZ L RESEY : Land and buildings held for own use:
&8 Hong Kong 288,843 288,843
F B A b Mainland China 60,391 60,391
R=F=—
=R=+—H
ZRR
Fair value as
E=H at 31 March
Level 3 2021
FTHET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BEMAALETE Recurring fair value measurement
REME Investment properties:
=B Hong Kong 157,352 157,352
o Bl P Mainland China 140,431 140,431
BEERAZ L RESEY Land and buildings held for own use:
H8 Hong Kong 318,047 318,047
B A Mainland China 58,981 58,981
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14. YE - BERRELURKREYWE (&) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES (continued)

AEBYEZRABETE(F Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties

(continued)

BE-ZE-__F=A=1+—HLEEE REF=HHN During the year ended 31 March 2022, there were no

BAFELE(ZZ-—F :8\) - transfers into or out of Level 3 (2021: nil).
EATAEE
BnASE
HERZE Significant
Valuation unobservable & E
techniques inputs Range
REBZREME-TX HELEE REENES -7.5%Z13.4%
Investment properties in Hong Kong Direct comparison EE ZaE (3TE) (ZE=—F:

— Industrial approach  Premium (discount) -28.1%%12.2%)
on quality of the -7.5% to 13.4%

buildings  (2021: -28.1% to 12.2%)

REBZRENE-H% BEELEBE PERNEE 11.5%Z21.1%
Investment properties in Hong Kong Direct comparison EH 2 iaE (7E) (ZE=—F:
— Commercial approach Premium (discount) -5.2%%27.7%)
on quality of the 11.5% to 21.1%

buildings (2021: -5.2% to 27.7%)

REBERLzZENFR-TX KWAEARLE ER(x 3.0%
Investment properties in Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (ZEBEZ—%F :3.0%)
Mainland China - Industrial approach 3.0%
(2021: 3.0%)

REPBEIR 2 REWFE-BFE D ONC N | EAfR 3.9%
Investment properties in Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (ZEZ—%F :13.9%)
Mainland China - Commercial approach 3.9%
(2021: 3.9%)

RABERE 2 RENE—EE D ONC N | EAf® 1.75%
Investment properties in Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate (ZB=—F:
Mainland China - Residential approach 1.9%%3.75%)
1.75%

Annual Report 2022 42 ¥4 #

(2021: 1.9% to 3.75%)
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14. V£ BERREURKREWE (&) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

EEBWEZRAAETE (B

PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties

(continued)

BEXAFAEE

BARE

HER % Significant
Valuation unobservable gE
techniques inputs Range
RABERE 2 RENE—EE ERLEBE REEYMEE 3%
Investment properties in Direct comparison YEH 2 aE (rE) (ZE=—%F:
Mainland China - Residential approach Premium (discount) -8.2% £ 12.4%)
on quality of the 3%
buildings (2021: -8.2% to 12.4%)
REBBEFEAZIHREREY -T% =8 304973 PERNEE -7.5%ZE12.7%
Land and buildings held for own use in Direct comparison EH ZiaE (7E) (ZBE=—F:
Hong Kong — Industrial approach Premium (discount) -28.1%Z% 8.3%)
on quality of the -7.5% t0 12.7%
buildings (2021: -28.1% to 8.3%)
REBREEBRAZIHREEY-FE ERLEBE REENES 1.6%Z16.8%
Land and buildings held for own use in Direct comparison EH 2 aE (rE) (ZE=—%:
Hong Kong — Residential approach Premium (discount) 12.8%%32.1%)
on quality of the 1.6% to 16.8%
buildings (2021: 12.8% to 32.1%)
ReBERtRFEERZ T REEY - B ERLEBE REENES -10%24.1%
Land and buildings held for own use in Mainland Direct comparison fEH 2R E (IT:E) (ZB=—F:
China - Commercial approach Premium (discount) -10.0%%4.7%)
on quality of the -10% to 4.1%
buildings (2021: -10.0% to 4.7%)
RPBERLEFEERZ T REEY 1% EEEBE MEEYES 28.7%%E32.1%
Land and buildings held for own use in Mainland Direct comparison EH ZaR () (ZE=—%:
China - Residential approach  Premium (discount) -3.3%%264.1%)

UREBRHBEANMFFEERZ T REEY 2D R
BENZ2ZHRALEAFLBRNEERE - RAFDS

on quality of the
buildings

28.7% to 32.1%
(2021: -3.3% to 64.1%)

The fair value of land and buildings held for own use

located in Hong Kong and Mainland China is determined
BEELEETE -

on an open market value basis, by making reference to the

comparable sales evidence in the relevant locality.
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14. V£ BERREURKREWE (&) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT

EEBWEZRAAETE (B

RENEZDAEDIOSZHBHETFLBRNES
5 RABRMWSEEREE R REHEREE
CHEREEEFSWABREENLMEE -

HELBUERERZEERTE - D EREY R
HEENLR - ZENEZES  BETFEERS 8
ERNAREFEBLEH -

WABRCERERANERNCRERRZEYOER D
SHEER HARUREERVEMFELHRAE - L
REFERTSESEEREERE  HEREER
BERR-

BE_Z-__F=F=t+—HLFE EFKEAH
I REEYAELE ZE-HEER0,138,000/%E T
—Z = — % 130,400,000/ T) RE 2 H UK = 1
oo fitf B2 S EE 2 i R B R IRE AR AR,
N HESNE R-E-—_F=A=+—HZKHME
1% £45,967,000/8 T (ZE=—% 167,978,000/ 7T) ©

BE_Z__F=A=1—HLEFE REVEAIR
B2 E FrELE 2 W 5,984,000 T (=2 = — & :
14,319,000/ 7t) ERIERFER ©
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PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s properties
(continued)

The fair value of investment properties is determined (i) on
an open market value basis, by making reference to the
comparable sales evidence in the relevant locality; or (ii) by
capitalising the current rent derived from the existing
tenancies with the provision for any revisionary income

potential.

The premium or discount used in direct comparison
approach is specific to the building compared to the recent
sales. Higher premium for higher quality buildings will

result in a higher fair value measurement.

The capitalisation rate used in income capitalisation
approach has been adjusted for the expected market rental
growth, occupancy rate and quality and location of the
building. The fair value measurement is positively
correlated to the market rental value and negatively

correlated to the capitalisation rate.

Revaluation surplus of HK$10,138,000 (2021:
HK$30,400,000) arising from revaluation of land and
buildings held for own use is recognised in other
comprehensive income during the year ended 31 March
2022. Had the above land and buildings held for own use
been carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation, the carrying amounts would have been
HK$45,967,000 (2021: HK$67,978,000) at 31 March 2022.

The gain arising from changes in fair value of investment
properties of HK$5,984,000 (2021: HK$14,319,000) is
recognised in profit or loss during the year ended 31 March
2022.
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15. FHAEEE 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
HEYE HEYx
-Z2E5 it YN
Leased Leased
properties - properties - At
retail shop office Total
THET TET THERT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B Cost:
R-E-ZEWNAE—H As at 1 April 2020 157,362 4,862 162,224
B A% Exchange adjustment 2,750 327 3,077
®E Additions 43,859 6,342 50,201
HEHRRES Modification of lease term 15,112 = 15,112
REZ JJ:*EEA,%"J Early termination of lease
contracts (26,573) (4,756) (31,329)
HEAHNER Expiration of lease contracts (8,931) = (8,931)
RZZEZ-%=B=+—H As at 31 March 2021 and
kK—E-—FMA—H 1 April 2021 183,579 6,775 190,354
fE 5 AR Exchange adjustment 1,441 392 1,833
2E Additions 1,347 3,530 4,877
HEGERBE Modification of lease term 33,834 - 33,834
Eiﬁiﬂ:*ﬁ% =F ) Early termination of lease
contracts (34,395) (905) (35,300)
HESWNER Expiration of lease contracts (8,743) - (8,743)
R-ZZE-_—_f=A=+-—H As at 31 March 2022 177,063 9,792 186,855
MERAE : Depreciation and impairment:
R-E-ZE@NA—H As at 1 April 2020 133,771 4,650 138,421
B & % Exchange adjustment 1,374 81 1,455
KEERNE Charge for the year 37,892 1,015 38,907
REZERIMESE Impairment losses recognised
in profit or loss 12,188 5,785 17,973
REALHAESN Early termination of lease
contracts (26,573) (4,756) (31,329)
HEEHER Expiration of lease contracts (8,931) = (8,931)
R-B-_-£=A=+—-H As at 31 March 2021 and
K=—ZE=-—5mMA—H 1 April 2021 149,721 6,775 156,496
Ak Exchange adjustment 1,148 391 1,539
REERE Charge for the year 32,911 1,079 33,990
REZERRARESE Impairment losses recognised
in profit or loss 4,059 2,452 6,511
REALHEESN Early termination of lease
contracts (34,167) (905) (35,072)
HESHNRER Expiration of lease contracts (8,743) = (8,743)
R-B-—&#=g=+—-¢ As at 31 March 2022 144,929 9,792 154,721
fRERME : Net carrying value:
R-ZE-—#=H=+—H As at 31 March 2022 32,134 = 32,134
RZEBE-_—F=A=1+—H As at 31 March 2021 33,858 - 33,858

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥

Annual Report 2022 4 4 #t



Ao 7 S 25 A Mk
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HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

15. EAREE (&) 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

—E_— —EBE_—F

2022 2021

FTHET FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

EHAHEMEERAX Expense relating to short-term leases 5,114 2,354
R EHEEERREEZ Variable lease payments not included in the

AEEENR measurement of lease liabilities 12,464 15,977

HEZRESREAE Total cash outflow for leases 64,127 65,954

RMEFE  AKEREXBLEEEAREAE F
EE BEAREERPLAE -HEGKITL—FE
AENEEES HPDRENEEGE YR
BT E MR R R o DA RE 70 8 I T 04 A~ 7T #8530
B HRE  AEBEASHNERYEES N AAT
ZHAMR ©

ZTEFHESAEFEEHENERRREETEMA
ERERAME #EREENETES L RAEE
REEENREFERERETE o 34 o 23 5015%
MEEERRR - FRGRDEAEBEENEHE
E& B hERH AERFNE 2 TEELE
KA - BE-ZE-__FR-Z-_—-F=A=+—HL
FE BN/ EMHEELERAZEERAISHEERE
SEEMT :
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For both years, the Group leases factory buildings, retail
shops, department store counters and offices for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of 1 to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which

the contract is enforceable.

Leases of retail shops are either with only fixed lease
payments terms or contain variable lease payment terms
that are based on certain percentage of sales and minimum
annual lease payment that are fixed over the lease term.
Some variable payment terms include cap clauses. The
payment terms are common in retail shops in Hong Kong,
Macau, Mainland China, Taiwan and Singapore where the
Group operates. The amount of fixed and variable lease
payments paid/payable to relevant lessors for the years
ended 31 March 2022 and 2021:
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15. FHEEE (i) 15.
BE-—S-_—F=H=+—HLEE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2022

ERRNEN EE-INES RBE
Fixed Variable Total
payments payments payments
FTHERT FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
I #EENRIERZ Retail shops without variable
TEE lease payment terms 960 = 960
REUSHEENRERZ Retail shops with variable
ZEE lease payment terms 47,405 12,464 59,869
48,365 12,464 60,829
BEZ-_Z-_—F=A=+—HILLFE For the year ended 31 March 2021
EREEA A OE¥E-:
Fixed Variable Total
payments payments payments
FHET FTHET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
WHEASHENTGERZ Retail shops without variable
ZER lease payment terms 7,074 = 7,074
HEUEBEEFRIERZ Retail shops with variable lease
ZTEE payment terms 40,516 15,977 56,493
47,590 15,977 63,567

ERATENRRRNBBY B ELSHERRSHNE
EEMEENHEENFERS - AHARBFILME
EMXETEEHEERNL A EERE

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥

The overall financial effect of using variable payment terms
is that higher rental costs are incurred by retail shops with
higher sales. Variable rent expenses are expected to
continue to represent a similar proportion of retail shops

sales in future years.
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15. EAREE (&) 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

HEER
BE-Z-—_S=ZF=t+—HLFE ZEZEEH
RBEARBEENEEAAZEBRBMZENRERRRED
10%ZE100% (ZZE=Z—F : M1 ZE12B B R10%E
100%) WS AREERMUEESER -

H2019B8RESHEENEEEREENZZIHSR
RSB B HREELE16.46BEMN A GKRLE - &
AEBEATTEEAETATEEREHRESERA
BB -BE-E-_—F=HA=1+—HLEEE AR
HEAMEBEEER NS E#210,082,0008 T (=F
——%1:19,677,00087T)  HHENREBNZE
ERREUSHEENK -

B 5 A

HA2019BRBESFEERAEBEEEHRAR
F AEEEREERAAFERENSR - WHBEWE
IR - BERRE W E S EETRMERNM -

FReEEENARESENREFEABETEME
EoZitEERARSREER  FHBACSELAEE
EEEME AESREESSENRGHSHRNG
BHEE AR-Z__F=A=1+—HWKRHAEER
R13.5% (ZF=Z—F 1 13.5%) BEE - FABEET
ER-BXERRAEEENR  HEBRBREELE
BENAARRBUREEBHMSERENENmMERE -
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Rent concessions

During the year ended 31 March 2022, lessors of various
retail stores and department store counters provided rent
concessions to the Group through rent reductions ranging
from 10% to 100% over 1 to 12 months (2021: 10% to
100% over 1 to 12 months).

These rent concessions occurred as a direct consequence of
Covid-19 pandemic and met all of the conditions in HKFRS
16.46B, and the Group applied the practical expedient not
to assess whether the changes constitute lease
modifications. The effects on changes in lease payments
due to forgiveness or waiver by the lessors for the relevant
leases of HK$10,082,000 (2021: HK$19,677,000) were
recognised as negative variable lease payments during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

Impairment assessment

Due to Covid-19 pandemic and adverse performance of the
Group’s retail operation, the management of the Group
concluded there was indication for impairment and
conducted impairment assessment on recoverable amounts

of leased properties and property, plant and equipment.

The recoverable amount of each cash-generating units has
been determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the management of the Group
covering the remaining lease term of each cash-generating
unit with a pre-tax discount rate of 13.5% (2021: 13.5%) as
at 31 March 2022. Another key assumption for the value in
use calculated is the budgeted gross margin, which is
determined based on each cash-generating units’ past
performance and management expectations for the market

development.
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15. ERAEEE (&)
WEREE (F)
REFHER  FEEEEERAETHSELEEN
WA E £ BENEREE REABEETE  E5
HEMEUARNE - BEREEZREED BIHEZR
86,511,000 T (ZF = —4F : 17,973,000 T) &
1,439,000/ T (ZE=— : 3,434,000 T) °

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)
Impairment assessment (continued)
Based on the result of the assessment, management of the
Group determined that the recoverable amounts of certain
cash-generating units are lower than the carrying amounts.
Based on the value in use calculation, an impairment of
HK$6,511,000 (2021: HK$17,973,000) and HK$1,439,000
(2021: HK$3,434,000) has been recognised against the
carrying amounts of leased properties and property, plant

and equipment respectively.

16. ENEE 16. DEPOSITS PAID
—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
THET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
HERHEMERS Rental and other deposits 25,869 26,395
WENE BEREEZ Deposit paid for acquisition of property,
NS plant and equipment 299 532
26,168 26,927
o HEREMES GEA Less: Rental and other deposits (included in
Ll B 0 B At B L trade and other receivables (note 18))
(MFzE18) M) (19,177) (21,687)
6,991 5,240

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥
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HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

17. & 17. INVENTORIES

—E=-= B —F
2022 2021
FTHET FTHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
B8 Raw materials 1,219 1,066
ERG Work in progress 539 788
SR m Finished goods 28,859 37,416
30,617 39,270

18. FEUREE 2R B H fth B UL X 18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
THET FTHEx
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE W BR X Trade receivables 6,272 8,147
HEREMRS - RB Rental and other deposits — current 19,177 21,687
BARE Prepayments 1,046 1,708
H fth FE U FR Other receivables 1,744 1,199
28,239 32,741
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HE-T-—_F=F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

18. W ARA R H it WK ()
REBEHR  RBEAMAESHRGERE ZEK
RMRE DT ¢

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade receivables, based on invoice date and net of loss

allowance, is as follows:

—E-— —E-—F

2022 2021

THET TET

HK$’000 HK$’000

308 & Within 30 days 4,616 6,796
318 Z908 31 to 90 days 1,226 1,104
91HE180H 91 to 180 days 429 3
#BiB180H Over 180 days 1 244
6,272 8,147

FEWERMHEREH 30208 EH - AEEBEE
BUR 2 — SR BRI 29 ©

RZBZ-F=ZA=+—B8 st ARXEBRKERE
R A BRE(ES57,000/8 7T (=ZF = — & : 407,000/
) ZEWERR ERERERRSAHECEH - RNE
BAZEERE R 0 430,000 T (ZZF = —F : 247,000
7U) B0 R L MHRESRAEZEEHK
ABYRE BERARREERTRZEY  RNEEE
BRNEATEHKE  ARTEFRAHEN - A5EH
WEMRZEEREFREEMERR -

B FE W AR T HL At B WK 2 BB RT A R R R B R
29 ©

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥

Trade receivables are due within 30 to 90 days from the
invoice date. Further details on the Group’s credit policy

are set out in note 29.

As at 31 March 2022, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$857,000 (2021: HK$407,000) which are past
due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
HK$430,000 (2021: HK$247,000) has been past due 90
days or more and is not considered as in default as the
Directors are of the opinion that the balances are still
considered fully recoverable due to long-term/on-going
relationship and good repayment record from these debtors.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other

receivables are set out in note 29.
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. BB BRI H At PE A 5K 19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
—E_C —E-—F
2022 2021
FTHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
AT R Trade payables 4,454 5,690
glzE Deposit received 3,135 2,960
EstE A Accrued charges 16,964 16,130
FEAS B BB 2 B FE 2 IR AR SRR 0A Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary 1,800 1,800
L Ath & F 5K Other payables 3,688 4,920
30,041 31,500
EAMBARFZERRRAESELRR  RERILE The amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of a
EEERH - subsidiary is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed
repayment terms.
RBEIRAR > REZE A BAFE BN RRIRER 2 710 As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
T s trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:
—EBE-CF —EBE-—fF
2022 2021
TR FTHEx
HK$’000 HK$'000
30A Within 30 days 980 2,461
31HZ90H 31 to 90 days 369 156
H#iB90H Over 90 days 3,105 3,073
4,454 5,690
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20. HERE 20. LEASE LIABILITIES
—E=-= B —F
2022 2021
FTHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
FENHEHESE: Lease liabilities payable:
—FR Within one year 38,520 61,467
BB—FEFBBMNE Within a period of more than one year
but not more than two years 13,840 15,532
BEMEEFSEBALE Within a period of more than two years
but not more than five years 3,999 4,388
56,359 81,387
HORBEEMRAR2MEAR Less: Amount due for settlement within
RENZEHE 12 months shown under current
liabilities (38,520) (61,467)
FRBEBERRRI2MEAR % Amount due for settlement after 12 months
BRNZEH shown under non-current liabilities 17,839 19,920
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21. €& 21. BORROWINGS
—E=-= B —F
2022 2021
FTHET FTHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RITEX Bank overdrafts 3,549 2,798
FRBEER Trust receipt loans 5,368 4,402
BHER Term loans _ 5,543
HM@HRTHEE Other short-term bank borrowings 4,000 40,800
12,917 53,543
FELMBRTREABRAR All the above bank borrowings were secured
AETHIHRERE : and repayable as follows:
BEREREEFRREETI The carrying amounts of bank loans that
HREZEZRITERZ contain a repayment on demand clause but
IREME (ME) : repayable (Note):
—FR Within one year 12,917 48,765
—FREWER After 1 year but within 2 years = 4,778
12,917 53,543
Mzt . EEN SR IE SRS TE S At E Note: The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment
WESFAFMREREBERIZZE - dates set out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect

of any repayment on demand clause.
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21. 58 (&) 21. BORROWINGS (continued)
RZZBZZHF=ZA=+—H  AEBZRTEETI As at 31 March 2022, the bank borrowings of the Group
IRE A& E127,400,0008 T (Z & = — F : were secured by legal charges over land and buildings held
155,300,000/ T) ZHHEB AL REEYURIIKRE for own use and investment properties with an aggregate
MEZEERTRAERAREZIERERIER - carrying value of HK$127,400,000 (2021:

HK$155,300,000) and guaranteed by the Company.

M ERITEEENEE THADRMKNE QR RA The above variable-rate bank borrowings are subject to the
SEHBEMRR L EZBE 225 c REERBLZ LR fulfilment of certain covenants relating to the financial
BECBIESHERARRARZERRR LGB position ratios of a Company’s subsidiary and the Group.
FRATEKBAADNARODZREBEME - MAKEERE Mr. Chan and Ms. Tsui shall remain as the Directors and
BRFE AEAREREELMRRTEE - AEEEH the largest shareholder of the Company and shall comply
BEEAFEF2ERHE2ER EREERDESRA with negative pledge obligation in relation to the shares of
e E-PHBHNME29 - R2ZZ2F=4 the Company. If the Group were to breach the covenants
=t—R UEERAFRAAEARITEEZZE (= the above secured bank borrowings would become payable
T —F 1 H) o on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance

with these covenants. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in note 29. As at
31 March 2022, none of the covenants relating to the

secured bank borrowings had been breached (2021: nil).
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22. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES

position and the movements during the year are as follows:

The components of deferred tax (assets) liabilities

recognised in the consolidated statement of financial

FESREE
RE&HE
Depreciation RER
in excess of FEEHN HMREE
the related BEftW% Unrealised Write-
depreciation  Revaluation profits on down of @zt
allowances  of properties inventories inventories Total
TEL TEx TER TEL Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZBE-ZFNE-H At 1 April 2020 (7,861) 108,045 (2,443) (354) 97,387
BEHR GIA) M1k (Credited) charged to profit or loss (1,312) 3,219 1,332 110 3,349
BTG Charged to reserves - 6,581 - - 6,581
R-Z--%£=f=1+-H At 31 March 2021 and 1 April 2021
k=E--%¥MA-H (9,173) 117,845 (1,111) (244) 107,317
BaEH GEA) Nk (Credited) charged to profit or loss (1,581) 1,460 399 (585) (307)
RERFA Credited to reserves = (6,710) = = (6,710)
W-E-__E=f=+-H At 31 March 2022 (10,754) 112,595 (712) (829) 100,300
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22, BEFRBHR (EE) BE (F

22. DEFERRED TAX (ASSETS) LIABILITIES (continued)

—E_— —EBE_—F
2022 2021
TERT TERT
HK$’000 HK$'000
REEHHEMRRRER 2 Net deferred tax assets recognised in the
BRIEFREREREFH consolidated statement of financial
position (243) (351)
REEHBRRRER 2 Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the
RIEFREHREEFHE consolidated statement of financial
position 100,543 107,668
100,300 107,317

RERMEHEBEEATEELEFEFEEZRRS =
FRFERZRIE6,464,0008 T (Z B = —F :
6,939,000 7T) - IHELEBFEFEREZEARLZATF
WE A ZRIE32,646,0008 T (Z 2= —F
44,864,0008 L) R BELEFEFELEZERES TF
A {5 A 2 7X184,982,0008 T (Z&E = —4F : 5,521,000
BIT) o RIBBEBBEHRM - 88%8316,033,000%8 7T (=
T —45 1 284,319,000 50) W E R o

R-ZBZ-F=ZA=+—HB  ~5ERFEAEEEN
RYZE - BERKREZRESB27,998,000%8 T (=F
= — % 40,946,000/ 70) AT EEFEZE - HRA TR
AR g ERERUERE A MR =8 ERN 2 A
MUY EREATREERREEESHEE

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥

Included in unrecognised tax losses is an amount of
HK$6,464,000 (2021: HK$6,939,000) which can be carried
forward up to three years from the year in which the loss
was incurred, an amount of HK$32,646,000 (2021:
HK$44,864,000) which can be carried forward up to five
years from the year in which the loss was incurred and an
amount of HK$4,982,000 (2021: HK$5,521,000) which can
be carried forward up to ten years from the year in which
the loss was incurred. The remaining balance of
HK$316,033,000 (2021: HK$284,319,000) does not expire

under the current tax legislation.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group has deductible temporary
differences in relation to impairment of right-of-use assets
and property, plant and equipment of HK$27,998,000
(2021: HK$40,946,000). No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in relation to such temporary difference as it is
not probable that taxable profit will be available against

which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
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23. BA& 23. SHARE CAPITAL
EER B #BITRA Authorised and issued share capital
—E-_—fF —E-—F
2022 2021
g 4= R HE
Number -] Number ]
of shares Amount of shares Amount
TR TER TR THET
000 HK$’000 000 HK$’000
EE Authorised:
BREE.01ETZ Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
LER 1,000,000 10,000 1,000,000 10,000
ERTRBE: Issued and fully paid:
REDRRER At beginning of the year and
at end of the year 287,930 2,880 287,930 2,880
ZEREEABEERTEERZKRE  BEARQFH The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
SRLIBRTE-ZREE -MIEEBERUEDAFZ dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
NHEEZAREES - one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All

ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s

residual assets.
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24, EREFRGE 24. RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

156

AEBRBEBSEFHE OB ST AR BRES
(BEGH) EESHERNEAZEESHEHRFIMEAES
TE ((aEestdll) - aBetEARBIZTEAE
B REMRFENRGE - RIBEBESTE EERE
EXBAREEABBA Z5%EZEHFK - BE A
BEWA EPRA30,000/8 T - BB S5 E 2 HRIIAD
BFERE o

REAtZHBARE 2 EAMEBRFEE 2 R EM
HEtd o LEMBARARTREANMESEEFT 2
HTHEELREZEER - HATDNEEE -

REBREXB e MBLARZEECRESHMEHE
EITRASHRPIEE 2 REMNETE - LB QT
MBSERAEHRRTE ZRBRERAEF SR Z6%HEN -

FHEMNRERREELE IRBAZBEAARKERS

ki
]
75

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥

The Group participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a
defined contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income,
subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.

Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

The subsidiaries in Mainland China participate in a defined
contribution scheme organised by the local government.
These subsidiaries are required to make contributions at
certain prescribed rates of the relevant Mainland China
employees’ salaries to the scheme. Contributions to the

scheme vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiary carrying on business in Taiwan
chose to participate in a defined contribution scheme
governed by the Labour Pension Act of Taiwan. This
subsidiary contributes at 6% of the total salaries of the
participating employees who have chosen to participate in
the defined contribution scheme, the contribution deposited
into individual pension accounts at the Bureau of Labour

Insurance of Taiwan.
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25.

RINEREE (F)

REFIKM B AR 2 8 T2 B3 K BF AR < $
RABEEHE ([hRRAEE]) - WBELARETIEER
HEIHFMcETEILATRABEENR - RiEH
RAEERA - ERRABZIHEFEREBRANRR -
MBAREEMERE  HEERAINIRAREZE
F I B — H BRI -

MR bt Sh - S 52 30 SR A ] R BB B R R AE AU K
ZEMBEAEME - RERKFEZHARELFRE
mAHIER - BRAMRAN BB F BRI FIMWE -

XERE

REZ-AFTH  AEEREE-—ZXNBLARATH
ENMELAR])EEEA  HER - SHRNREBRE
HBERTHES S AR BM2EMSRRIEREL
IRERBESR - BEXLEEE2EMSRERBRE
BEEMBLAR  HRRRABERBEEZFRSMBEHERT
BRAMEARRE  BENBLRAEEEBRE LR
RZEAEMR - AEECZEIAEMAEERER
Bk ESREEQASE I REMERZER -
AR -2 —_FR-_ZF-_—F=A=1t—HIALEH
BEPRTIRE® -
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24.

25.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS (continued)

Employees of the subsidiary in Singapore participate in the
Central Provident Fund scheme (the “CPF”) organised by
the government of Singapore. This subsidiary and its
employees are required to contribute a certain percentage
of the employees’ payroll to the CPF. The contributions are
charged to the profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the CPF. The subsidiary has no
further obligations for the actual pension payments or post-

retirement benefits beyond its contributions.

Save as set out above, the Group has no other material
obligations to make payments in respect of retirement
benefits of the employees. Contributions to the defined
contribution scheme are charged to profit or loss when
incurred. Details of the contribution scheme amount are

disclosed in note 9.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In October 2015, a subsidiary of the Group in Hong Kong
(the “Hong Kong Subsidiary”) received a notice that it was
being sued by a fabric manufacturer under a writ of
summons in the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in respect of alleged infringement of
copyright. The generally indorsed writ of summons was
subsequently served on the Hong Kong Subsidiary but the
statement of claim has not yet been served up to the date of
issue of the consolidated financial statements and the Hong
Kong Subsidiary continues to deny any liability in respect
of the above claim. An external counsel has been engaged
to defend the said claim and the Directors will continue to
seek advice from the Group’s external counsel. No
provision has therefore been made in respect of this claim
as at 31 March 2022 and 2021.
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26. BXENRE 26. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
—E_C —E-—F
2022 2021
FTHET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BBBEBYE BRERRE Capital expenditure contracted for but not
EHESEER S ST provided for in the consolidated financial
BiE2EARTH statements in respect of acquisition of
property, plant and equipment 1,512 1,397
27. BREHE 27. OPERATING LEASING ARRANGEMENTS
AEBEERHBEA The Group as lessor
HEZEYCRERESAREINT Undiscounted lease payments receivable on leases are as
follows:
—E_—F B —F
2022 2021
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
—FR Within one year 4,255 4,236
E_F In the second year 4,004 3,639
= In the third year 3,677 3,369
FHE In the fourth year 3,758 3,461
FEEF In the fifth year 3,861 3,537
hFE#% After five years 2,252 5,754
21,807 23,996
FRHE-—RUOTAP - FE2LF - FEKLEHRSY The leases typically run for an initial period of one to seven
TREHFHE - years. None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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28. ELEMBERE
AEEEREERACHEEREDRERAEERAEER
BRESEREELE  MMEREERKKEREEZ
EmRBREEERUGERAESHE  BEARR
AIERISRE A HEMBZHEF LR -

AEFEBRIENEHNEEAEREE  UESKR
ROBRESEENRFNERNRRTRNBEREE
REZEHIREFE  LEREESERENBCHERR
BAEHAE -

R-ZZBZ-FHE AEBRAZZT - —F 2K
ERHERRBUAR VB S K TEAREESAR
T BBESSIRAERSKT  AEBEARBRNS TR
ReBRESE BOHRG SEHEEMERHE
BEEMBEKFE -
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28.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk

and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in

economic conditions.

During 2022, the Group’s strategy in monitoring its capital
structure, which was unchanged from 2021, was to
maintain a sufficient cash level to meet its liquidity
requirements. In order to maintain or adjust the cash level,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends payable to
shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt financing or

sell assets to increase the cash level.
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29. €@ T H 29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
ERIAEZEH Categories of financial instruments
—E-— —E-—F
2022 2021
THET FTHEx
HK$’000 HK$'000
EMEE Financial assets
1 85 By A< Amortised cost 48,309 53,308
cRAas Financial liabilities
B A Amortised cost 80,891 149,211

SREABEENEHRBE

FE RBES MNEREERARDEREEER 2
EREBBREPEL - AKEAAE2ZSABRRA
SEEEZSRABMRAZHBEREERRRES
BN T -

= Em R R B E

AEBzFERBREZRREBKIRK - AtbEYRK -
BERBTHEES AEETESHEMAEFRIE M
FEERER  UAEEZESTREERBNEERR

AEBEMAREHF I ARERTEEMSAERES
BRBIANBREERBREGSUBRRTRAAE
HERATHEENIREE -

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks
arises in the normal course of the Group’s business. The
Group’s exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to

manage these risks are described below.

Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
receivables, other receivables, deposits and bank balances.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated with these

financial assets.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial

position.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables

Retail sales are mainly on a cash basis, either in cash, debit
card or credit card payments. In order to minimise the
credit risk in regard of balances with trade receivables
debtors, which mainly consist of credit card institutions,
department stores and malls, the management of the Group
has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the management of the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. The Group applies simplified approach on trade
receivables to assess for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9. To
measure ECL of trade receivables at amortised cost, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its counterparties
and they are assessed individually by reference to past
default experience, current past due exposure of the
debtors and an analysis of the debtors’ current financial
position. The ECL rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors
and are adjusted for forward-looking information (for
example, the current and forecasted global economy which
reflect the general economic conditions of the industry in
which the debtors operate) that is available without undue
cost or effort. Such forward-looking information is used by
the management of the Group to assess both the current as
well as the forecast direction of conditions at the reporting
date.
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29, @@ T E (&)

TEEREENE KRB (E)

=B m B R R E TS ()

FE W SR 5% (A8

ERAFERUAZEFERBAR  BAHFLIRER
ERTAEBEERSIINERATRNIERT SHM

B RMEMR  WEBKERR ZEERMERE (=
Bo-FE) N AREEEERS  RIBE

BARESFH2EL TREEOE - LR IEAR b
BRI - S A E R B TRE - 5
RAMBEBETRERFELTEX - BT 28T
e

AEERERERAHEFEERAR RS-
ZEA=t+—8 AEBIREAEFIREAEFH
HEWBRRD B A31% (ZFE=—F 1 16%) K61%
(ZB=—F:51%) - AEBEEEEERZSY
FHNBREFERR -

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The credit risk on credit card receivables is limited because
the counterparties are bank/financial institutions with high
external credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies. As at the end of the reporting period,
there is no credit-impaired balance of trade receivables
(2021: nil). In addition, the management of the Group
considers those not credit-impaired trade receivables were
collectible based on historical observed default rates over
the expected life of the debtors and adjusted for
forward-looking information. The Directors are of the
opinion that allowance for impairment on the remaining
trade receivables was insignificant and thus negligible to be

made.

The Group has concentration of credit risk on the trade
receivables. As at 31 March 2022, 31% (2021: 16%) of
trade receivables is due from the Group’s largest
counterparty and 61% (2021: 51%) of trade receivables is
due from the five largest counterparties. The management
of the Group closely monitors the subsequent settlement by

the counterparties.
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29. SWMI A (£#) 29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

TEEREENE KRB (E)

=B m B R R E TS ()

Bt A At EREHEE
HREMERRAREERAMZEMS  ESREE
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Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (continued)

Other financial assets at amortised costs

For other receivables and rental and other deposits, the
Directors make periodic individual assessment on the
recoverability of significant balances based on historical
settlement records, past experience, and also available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.
The Directors believe that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of other
receivables and deposits. Based on assessment by the
management of the Group, the ECL for other receivables

and deposits is insignificant.

The bank balances are placed in various authorised
financial institutions either with high credit ratings or good
financial background and the Directors consider the credit

risk of such authorised financial institutions is low.
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29. SWMI A (£#) 29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
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TEEREENE KRB (E)

FEBE L E R
MR-ZEBE-—FE=A=1+—0 AEEzZRHEEES
HRBHEENS 338,000 T (2B = —F:

57,042,000 7T) cBE-—E-_—_F=A=+—HL
FE AEEEELKEREREN1,598,0008 T (=
T —%:10,361,0008T) R-ZZE-__F=A
=Et—H AEBRFEZReRReEEYAES
14,424,000 T (=2 =—4% :17,567,000/87T) k&
B R ITRE 51,756,000 T (Z B = — & :
31,963,000 7T) °

AEEZHRACHEERDESTE  UBRHESE
RREARSMHE UENEREHMZADESTE -

i WARTHRTRRESTH (BIBERITNEER
AHEZAEXE  FMEFEER  RBREHAREH
ZERFHEZAEXIH)ESNELE -

HRESHEPRTETETEEZRDSEZ 2EF
ZHRFEERNAR ZBITEERBSREEERY
BE At RZAFERTEEMNS * TRINETR
BREERHZTAORFTRERSAL  URMEERA
TEAEZERIFER 2 ERGEERNER SR HEEZ

=7
&

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately HK$8,338,000
(2021: HK$57,042,000). For the year ended 31 March
2022, the Group generated operating cash flows of
approximately HK$1,598,000 (2021: HK$10,361,000). As
at 31 March 2022, the total cash and cash equivalents of
HK$14,424,000 (2021: HK$17,567,000) were held by the
Group and unutilised bank facilities amounted to
approximately HK$51,756,000 (2021: HK$31,963,000)

were available.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and

longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash outflows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on

rates current at the end of the reporting period).

As the Directors do not expect the banks would exercise
the rights to demand repayment, the bank borrowings
subject to repayment on demand clause are expected to be
repayable based on the specific repayment terms. Hence,
for these bank borrowings, the following tables show the
contractual undiscounted cash outflows according to the
specific repayment terms and, separately, the impact to the
timing of the cash outflows if the lenders were to invoke
their unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate

effect.
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29. & MIT A (&) 29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
TREAREENENRBE(A) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
BB 2 EE (E) Liquidity risk (continued)
ZE-CE
2022
HESER gk kvioh
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ik R —£% MmER
ME BmER BEFR
Weighted ~ HEBEX More than ~ More than
average K55 —E®  1yearbut 2 years but REE
interest On Within ~ lessthan less than @3 Carrying
rate demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Total amount

TER TER TER TER TER TER
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

ERERBERIAR Bank borrowings subject to
ZRTEE repayment on demand
clauses:
REEERHEN Scheduled repayment TEA N/A - = = - - -
HitGHfEE Other short-terms borrowings 1.83% = 13,075 - - 13,075 12,917
ENEFREMERR Trade and other payables TEAN/A - 11,615 - - 11,615 11,615
HEEE Lease liabilities 2.14% = 39,159 14,052 4,042 57,253 56,359
- 63,849 14,052 4,042 81,943 80,891
REEFAZEXDE Adjustments to disclose cash
EBEERNHBTER flows on bank borrowings
ReRgEsRERR based on lender's right to
demand repayment 12,917 (13,075) - - (158) -
i Total 12917 50774 14,052 4042 81,785 80,891
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29, @@ T E (&)
cREREENENREBE (&)

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
REEL R (E) Liquidity risk (continued)
“EC-F
2021
ARRFTRRAER
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
¥ —F MER
Gk BRER EBEFR
Weighted ~ BEBA More than ~ More than
average 5 2 —&®  Tyearbut 2 yearsbut REE
interest On Within -~ lessthan  less than @it Carrying
rate demand 1 year 2 years 5 years Total amount
TR THET TR TR TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRERBERER Bank borrowings subject to
ZRTEE repayment on demand
clauses:
BRREEENHEN Scheduled repayment 2.05% - 870 4,786 - 5,656 5,543
HtEEEE Other short-terms borrowings 1.90% - 48,852 - - 48,852 48,000
R RAR AR Trade and other payables THEA NA - 14,281 - - 14,281 14,281
HEEE Lease liabilities 3.46% = 62,483 15,949 4,483 82,915 81,387
- 126,486 20,735 4,483 151,704 149,211
BREEFAZERME Adjustments to disclose cash
EREAURTHEE flows on bank borrowings
RERBRERR based on lender's right to
demand repayment 53,543 (49,722) (4,786) - (965) -
Y Total 53,543 76,764 15,949 4483 150739 149,211

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥
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AEENREREN AR FTRETZERITEERR

THBEE - AREEBREFNRKFRASFEE
ANZSHELENECHEMEEARREAR - 2
BN ERRZEAENLILRREBEEEER
REHEE -

AEEZAZEBRERRBFETHEAS

(i)  FIFEL
TERAAEFRBENARTESREERSHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
variable rate bank borrowings and bank balances. The
Group manages its interest rate exposures by assessing the
potential impact arising from any interest rate movements
based on interest rate level and outlook. The management
will review the proportion of borrowings in fixed and

variable rates and ensure they are within reasonable range.

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its

variable rate financial liabilities.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of

BZRRERS the Group’s interest-bearing financial assets and
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period:
—ECZCfF —EBE-—fF
2022 2021
BRA = B A=
Effective TERT Effective FTHET
interest rate $000 interest rate $'000
THINEZSHESE Variable rate financial liabilities
—-BE - Borrowings 1.66%Z 1.56%%
2.06% 2.42%
1.66% to 1.56% to
2.06% 12,917 2.42% 53,543
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29, @@ T E (&)

TEEREENE KRB (E)

FiF B Bz ()
(i)  BRE T HT
AZE__F=H=+—H - e FREERD
SEMOEES MEMAET#EZREZTT
% AREEoBRBEBEERBTEERRD
#N22,000/8 T (ZF=—%F : 89,0008 ) °

FRBRESMIBRRRBEHRERTEZE
MITEREFERTE  SHAKENRBEER
REFBRERNFRECLEMRES - AREE
B ESARMBERRAURAETEZETE
EIR MERIWMLEZEEE TEMTRN
DNAEFERR - EEERS  HRFLAZEAR
AERBREEFEZRERE  SREDTHERF
RS WERRME -

BxmEE

HETRUESRARENRIUARRTEGAEEEEE
BT EW NG THE - BB EEE YN
R\ Bz o AN B AT I SN ORI o AT EEE
ERIERE - WNFEEFGEREPERINMNE RS -
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis
At 31 March 2022, it is estimated that a general
decrease/increase of 20 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would have
decreased/increased the Group’s loss after tax and
accumulated losses by HK$22,000 (2021:
HK$89,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the annualised
impact on the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated
losses that is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year. The
analysis does not take into account exposure to fair
value interest rate risk arising from fixed rate
instruments as the Group does not hold any fixed rate
instruments which are measured at fair value in the
financial statements. In management’s opinion, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the inherent
interest rate risk as the year end exposure does not

reflect the exposure during the relevant years.

Currency risk

Certain trade receivables and payables and bank balances
are denominated in foreign currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities, which
expose the Group to foreign currency risk. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arises.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

BEmb (& Currency risk (continued)
(i) FRIEZEEEE (i) Exposure to currency risk
AEEUMEBER 2SR UINEBHENE The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary assets
MEEREERBRENARANWEEENT : and liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they
relate at the end of the reporting periods are as
follows:
BE &
Assets Liabilities
—E-— —Eq-—F —E-C —E-—F
2022 2021 2022 2021
THERT THET TER THET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
5 Euros = - (854) (1,605)
BT Hong Kong dollars 68,812 74,763 (64,107) (62,598)
AR Renminbi 19 89 (521) (1,176)
MEHNME > ARzEBREBERFEIZREE For presentation purpose, the amounts of exposure are
BESBT - shown in Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot
rate at the year end date.
(i) BBEEZH (i) Sensitivity analysis

TRERFEERREHREAERR R 2N

BTORYE CRREHARERESTE -

Annual Report 2022 42 ¥4 #

The following table indicates the instantaneous change
in the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses
that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the
group entities have significant exposure at the end of
the reporting period had changed at that date,

assuming all other risk variables remained constant.
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29, @@ T E (&)

30.

TEEREENE KRB (E)

E¥mb (A
(ii)  BRE 7T ()

29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)
Currency risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

—EC-CF “E--F
2022 2021
Ex Ex

R BREEESR R BB r BHEEE ZitEE

(T#) B/ #mOED) (FEk) 2 #BmOED)

Increase (B2) Increase Increase (A2) Increase

(decrease) Increase  (decrease) (decrease) Increase (decrease)

in foreign (decrease) in in foreign (decrease) in

exchange inloss accumulated exchange inloss accumulated

rates after tax losses rates after tax losses

TR THT THER THAR

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

B Furos 10% (71) 71) 10% 134 134
(10%) 71 71 (10%) (134 (134

BT Hong Kong dollars 5% 43 43 5% (227) (227)

(5%) 43) (43) (5%) 227 227

AR¥ Renminbi 5% 21 21 5% 45 45

(5%) 21 21 (5%) (45) (45)
EEERS HARFAZEBAERREBEFEZR In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
o BURESTHERINMERRT S LERRMY - unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as

ARME
BEBERAHEZASM I AYZREAR -
ER-ZEB--FZA=+t-HZAABEFEREKRE
E2EHIE -

FEFRERS

BE-Z-__F=A=+—HLFE FTEERTE
IEERET LA E R - FAEEE4S,877,0008 T (=
T —4%F :50,201,000% 7t) R HE & E4,834,000%
JC(ZZE = —4 :49,930,000587T) 2 BIE REERA
BRRER o o REERFAFREEBLET 2 RIRRAE
AREERBEEEA[E33,834,0008 T (ZE=—F .
15,112,000 Jt) $%33,834,0008 7t (Z B = — & :
15,112,00058 7T) °

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥

30.

the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the relevant years.

Fair values

All financial instruments that are measured at amortised
cost are carried at amounts not materially different from
their fair values as at 31 March 2022 and 2021.

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group entered
into new lease arrangements in respect of retail stores.
Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of HK$4,877,000
(2021: HK$50,201,000) and HK$4,834,000 (2021:
HK$49,930,000) respectively were recognised at the
commencement of the leases. Furthermore, the Group
recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of
HK$33,834,000 (2021: HK$15,112,000) and
HK$33,834,000 (2021: HK$15,112,000), respectively, in
relation to lease modification during the year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-_Z-—#=A=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/BALANCES
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the

Group entered into the following material related party

transactions:

HEBARZRS (@) Transactions with related companies
—E_—F —E-—F
2022 2021
THERT THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ETBEE2HERX Rental expense for staff quarter (1,200) (1,200)
REMEZHERA Rental income from investment properties 236 175
R % & W A Service fee income 1,018 696
RIS E R X Service fee expense 17) (15)
SHER 1 IR & Sales of fashion apparel 1,711 -
i B B [ i B Purchase of fashion accessories - (4)

HEBART L 2ESWA - HEMX - REE
WA RBERXUREENRITNGHERR
ZARFRERE ©

FEEEAEMS (b)
FTEEBASHE RRMEFI0MKENLTFA
NEHMTESZHE (FTEERRE2ESES
ZEYEF))MT :

Rental income, rental expense, service fee income,
service fee expense, purchase and sales with related
companies were at terms mutually agreed by the

parties concerned.

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel,
representing amounts paid to the Company’s executive
directors excluding the benefits in kind regarding the
provision of a rental free quarter, as disclosed in note

10, is as follows:

—E-— —E-—F

2022 2021

TERT FAET

HK$’000 HK$’000

EHEERF Short-term employee benefits 8,179 5,287
B ESRET Post-employment benefits 54 54
8,233 5,341

Annual Report 2022 42 ¥4 #

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% i¥ B B 4 [ A [ 2 #

171



172

Ao 7 S 25 A Mk

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-T-—_F=F=+—HILFE For the year ended 31 March 2022
32. MEEBMELREZHE 32. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
TREAAEERETBIELEE2EBFHE - & The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
RRERFIRESED RETHELEEBRRER from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
REARRERENAEB 2 GERERERADE changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are

ARETH - REREZEE -

liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of

cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

RS HEERE RITEE

Interest Lease Bank @t
payable liabilities  borrowings Total

FTER FTEx FTEr FEr
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
(M¥=E20) (BF&E21)

(note 20) (note 21)
R-ZZ-ZFNA—A AT April 2020 - 88,660 34,080 122,740
[E 5 A Exchange adjustment _ 1,948 _ 1,948
ENR ik -1 New lease entered = 49,930 - 49,930
BEALEEAY Early termination of lease
contracts - (10,652) - (10,652)
BAIHERR Modification of lease terms - 15,112 - 15,112
20198 RFESHEBEESER Covid-19 related rent concessions = (19,677) = (19,677)
ERABMERS Finance cost recognised 1,149 3,689 - 4,838
MERERE Financing cash flows (1,149) (47,623) 19,463 (29,309)
RZB-Z-$=ZA=t-HK At 31 March 2021 and
—E--£MA—H 1 April 2021 - 81,387 53,543 134,930
EXAR Exchange adjustment - 931 - 931
HIVE ik New lease entered = 4,834 = 4,834
REALHEESYN Early termination of lease
contracts - (9,448) - (9,448)
CHEEN- LT Modification of lease terms = 33,834 = 33,834
20198 RFESHEERESER Covid-19 related rent concessions = (10,082) = (10,082)
ERRARE KA Finance cost recognised 1,058 1,452 = 2,510
MERER=E Financing cash flows (1,058) (46,549) (40,626) (88,233)
R-E-—_#=A=+-H At 31 March 2022 = 56,359 12,917 69,276
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33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY
Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March
2022 and 31 March 2021 are set out below, the class of

33. ARFRFTEMBARAZFHE

R-E_—_F=A=+—HRZE-_—F=A=1+—
B AREEZEENBEARZERERIRTY BS

BHAN FEEZROBNIREBER :

shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated:

BRTRAR
B /i
Eaug A BAzHfE
REELS Particulars of issued and AEBERRE
NEER Place of incorporation fully paid-up share/ Attributable equity ~ EFEEH
Name of company and operation registered capital interest to the Group  Principal activity
“B--F C—E-_-&
2022 2021
Moiselle (BV) Limited AREARHE 2,008 B R 100% 100% REER
British Virgin Islands FRERES Investment holding
2,000 shares of
US$1 each
EEERLA B 500,000 £ 100% 100%  SERHRHRES
Beautirich Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
BEREHRERAA g ELERZE 100% 100% WRRERNESE
Boo Gie Garment Factory Limited Hong Kong 200,000/ R Sourcing of materials and
EER property holding
1,800,001 R AR 13
Deferred non-voting
200,000 shares
Ordinary
1,800,001 shares
WEREERAT B 10,0008 f 3 100% 100%  W¥EAE
Landwin Investments Limited Hong Kong 10,000 shares Property holding
Rt (BR) BRAA B 1,000,000 3 100% 100%  SERHRHRES
Moiselle (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
Moiselle Singapore Pte. Ltd. MR 500,000k 8 RAE 100% 100%  ZERHRHRAEH
Singapore 1R Retail of fashion apparel and
500,000 shares of accessories
SC$1 each
ZEERAE ABEMAES IREEIXT 100% 100% BERHRHRES
Onexcel Limited British Virgin Islands 1 share of US§1 Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
ERREERAT B 500,0008 B 3 100% 100% FEREHRHRES
Pearl Jade Investments Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and
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33. AT EEMBE AT ZFE (&) 33. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

BROTRAE
B/
ERulA Bhif
REERE Particulars of issued and AEERERE
NAER Place of incorporation fully paid-up share/ Attributable equity ~ FEXH
Name of company and operation registered capital interest to the Group  Principal activity
ZE_ZF ZECZ-F
2022 2021
RRARERLT B 500,008 & 100% 100% SERHBHRELD
Perfect National International Limited Hong Kong 500,000 shares Retail of fashion apparel and
accessories
RK Moiselle Fashions Limited B I 70% 0%  HEEHRGRES
Hong Kong 1,429 shares Wholesale of fashion apparel
and accessories
ERRAARAT B 1,008 100% 100% NEKE
Shirley Investments Limited Hong Kong 1,000 shares Property holding
EHERARAT e sER25,000 100% 100% BERHRHRES
Treasure Light Fashion Limited Macau S Retail of fashion apparel and
Registered capital accessories
MOP25,000
BREX (RY) BRAT RE 2,100,000% 7 100% 100%  RERE
Ming Fung Garment Manufacturing (Shenzhen) Mainland China HK$2,100,000 Manufacturing of garments
Company Limited*
AMIESBENEERAF" REIR KE#500,0007 70% 0% BERBBEH
Shenzhen Baozhuo Fashion Wholesale Co., Ltd.* Mainland China RMB500,000 RETRE
Retail and wholesale of fashion
apparel and accessories
AMIEXREEFERRAF" hER AE#2,000,0007 100% 100%  FERKZEGH
Shen Zhen Graceful Fashion Retail Mainland China RMB2,000,000 IR & B
Limited Company* Retail and wholesale of fashion
apparel and accessories
HERE (RY) BRAF" PR 8,400,00087 100% 100%  REAK
Yubao Fashionable Dress (Shenzhen) Mainland China HK$8,400,000 Manufacturing of garments
Co., Ltd.*
R AERER SR ERA T RE AE%10,0007 100% 100% WEKE
Shenzhen QianHai Xiaofeng Fashion Design Co., ~ Mainland China RMB10,000 Property holding
Ltd *
* REBPBEUEGEMZIEREDRE - *  These are foreign investment enterprises registered under the
laws of the PRC.
KAEEE  BEHBATCRTEABEES - None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at

the end of both years.
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RPN T 2R BERRRREE 34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES
OF THE COMPANY
—E=-= —EBE-—F
2022 2021
THET FTER
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRBEE Non-current assets
RIB AR ZRE Investments in a subsidiary 61,671 61,671
JE W Ffs 1B 2 B RRIR Amount due from a subsidiary 211,995 218,114
273,666 279,785
REBEE Current assets
H {th FE LK Other receivables 231 228
RITHEBRRE Bank balances and cash 48 385
279 613
REBAE Current liability
H Aot AT K Other payables 817 917
REBAEFEE Net current liabilities (538) (304)
EEFE Net assets 273,128 279,481
BERK & B Capital and reserves
Bz A< Share capital 2,880 2,880
HE Reserves 270,248 276,601
MRERE R A Total equity 273,128 279,481
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34. ARFZzHMBRREKRERE (&)

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVES
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

RARRE2LE : Movement in the Company’s reserves:
B3R
BHRE EARS RERN EZAE
Share Contributed Retained Total
premium surplus profits equity
TR FTEx TR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
(ME&EG)  (BYEEGD)
(note (i) (note (ii))
MR-E-ZEFEWNAHA—H At 1 April 2020 65,327 61,572 153,228 280,127
FRNEHEBE A% Total comprehensive expense
for the year - - (3,526) (3,526)
R-E=--5=ZA=+-BK At 31 March 2021 and
—EZ-_-FMA-—H 1 April 2021 65,327 61,572 149,702 276,601
FREZEE LA Total comprehensive expense
for the year = - (6,353) (6,353)
RZEBEZZF#=A=+—H At 31 March 2022 65,327 61,572 143,349 270,248

Notes:

() RERSEREAFZE ROBERVIKTAAH (i)
ZBRR - HEERERESIRRE BHE  AQRED
BREIRIMAEEAEEBRBEPELEZER -

FRADGRE TR AT AB TR AR R 2 B REH DK

(i) EHBBERRER-"ZT2E-F-A-FTHAEX

ZEEEAMREZHB AR ER 2SN EEFE
ERAFAMEERREZERTROCEABEZE
B BHRSZAZRERMEEMR -

Moiselle International Holdings Limited %% v B B 4 M A R & ¥

(ii)

In accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium account is distributable to
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. The
share premium may also be distributed in the form of fully
paid bonus shares.

The contributed surplus represents the difference between the
then combined net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired
over the nominal value of the shares of the Company issued
in exchange thereof pursuant to a group reorganisation which
became effective on 25 January 2002. The application of
contributed surplus is the same as the share premium.
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3th 3k
Address

=i

A

RIGEBE145%

ERE

1T D3R

Shop D on G/F

Bo Ming Court

14 Tin Hau Temple Road
North Point

Hong Kong

=i

BBF

BEEEE7R

LSS

2612 EB1D

Part of 26th Floor

Hing Wai Centre

No. 7 Tin Wan Praya Road
Aberdeen

Hong Kong

BB

JUEE

RAE

BMHEB1-875%

SRIEXRE

BIEAKRBE

Factory Units A & B on 8th Floor,
Island Industrial Building,
Nos. 81-87 Tung Chau Street
Tai Kok Tsui

Kowloon

Hong Kong

SRS SETE S

Properties held for Investment

RERR
Existing use
g

Shop

B
Warehouse
B
Warehouse

H

Lease term

BHEE

Short lease

AR

Medium-term lease

AR

Medium-term lease
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(VS SEIE S

Properties held for Investment

33k REAR H
Address Existing use Lease term

d)  HEFRI
EHE
T B I R A B
SHERES
41E4101BER4102E WAE HEEE
(d) Units 4101B & 4102 on 41st Floor,
Excellence Times Plaza
Yitian Road and Fuhua Road
Futian District
Shenzhen, the PRC Office Medium-term lease

(e) FERYIMAZENFIXEE
REEREF1.6E3#3CR3IDE WRE hHIEE
(e) Units 3C and 3D on 3rd Floor,
Tianfa Building, F1.6
Tian’an Chegongmiao
Industrial Zone,
Shenzhen, the PRC Office Medium-term lease

(f) FERYTAZREABIXBARZAE

H2.8BE5#E5A5 » 5A6 » 5A7R5A8Z ~ 61£6A5 » 6A6

6A7R6ABE AR 7HE7A9 » 7A10 » 7A11 »

7A12 ~ 7A13R7AT14E B REEE
(f) Flats 5A5, 5A6, 5A7 and 5A8 on 5th Floor,

Flats 6A5, 6A6, 6A7 and 6A8 on 6th Floor

and Flats 7A9, 7A10, 7A11, 7A12, 7A13 and

7A14 on 7th Floor, Jiutai Apartment H2.8,

Tian’an Chegongmiao

Industrial Zone,

Shenzhen, the PRC Quarter Medium-term lease

(g) RERYIHELE
MERERHETL=H (FEEEH )

16/B16H3%E DB RS
(g) Unit 16H on 16th Floor,

Qianhai Kerry Commercial Centre Phase 2 (Qianhai Kerry Centre),

Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the PRC Apartment Medium-term lease
REZZBZZFZA=+—H FEREVEZEEBELNR Properties held for investment occupied approximately 52,000
52,0005 R ° square feet in area at 31 March 2022.
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Group Financial Summary
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UTRAAERBE-_Z-_—_F=A=+t—HLAFAFES The following is a summary of the published results and assets
FEHBRFXEUREEREBEZHE - and liabilities of the group for each of the five years ended 31
March 2022.
£ RESULTS
BE=A=1t—-HLEE
Year ended 31 March
—g-=% -F--F —F-FF -F-NE “B-N\F
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
TET FTHET FTHET FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W g Revenue 138,526 127,283 191,604 251,021 290,576
ReEBE Loss from operations (44,469) (29,078)  (119,134) (44,905) (21,622)
A& R Finance costs (2,510) (4,838) (4,824) (510) (189)
BEEE DRI ZEE Share of results of a joint venture = - - 131 577
HE B D A 2 W Gain on disposal of a subsidiary - - - 356 _
T REENUR Net valuation gains (losses) on
REMEZGE land and buildings and
W (E5i8) B4 investment properties 5,984 14,319 (25,425) 27,790 27,594
BRBUAT (B51R) & F (Loss) profit before taxation (40,995) (19,597)  (149,383) (17,138) 6,360
Frig® Income tax 48 (3,608) 2,917 (2,703) (5,099)
Fr (BB ER (Loss) profit for the year (40,947) (23,205)  (146,466) (19,841) 1,261
THALHER Attributable to:
NG5 Equity shareholders of
the company (40,718) (22,751) (146,694) (19,717) 2,007
FERES Non-controlling interests (229) (454) 228 (124) (746)
Fr (BB ER (Loss) profit for the year (40,947) (23,205)  (146,466) (19,841) 1,261
BR(BR)BF (Loss) earnings per share
HA Basic HK$(0.14)8 7T HK$(0.08)B 7T HK$(0.51)8 T HK$(0.07)BT HK$0.018 T
BRERE Dividends per share = = - - HK$0.05%8 T
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Group Financial Summary

EERERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
R=A=+—-H
At 31 March
SH=E= “E--F ZE-EE —Z-RF ZZ-N\F
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
FTERT TERT THET TET TR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M- BERRE Property, plant and equipment
URBREYE and investment properties 602,165 677,136 631,325 685,169 645,818
Hth&EE Other assets 39,125 39,098 48,517 27,775 13,565
EEFMSHEE Deferred tax assets 243 351 566 600 3,437
nE (BB EEFE Net current (liabilities) assets (8,338) (57,042) (24,850) 75,509 103,524
EERERADER Total assets less current
liabilities 633,195 659,543 655,558 789,053 766,344
¥ RBEE Non-current liabilities (118,382)  (127,588)  (125,020)  (102,850) (94,254)
BEEFE NET ASSETS 514,813 531,955 530,538 686,203 672,090
[ Share capital 2,880 2,880 2,880 2,880 2,880
4] Reserves 513,136 530,049 528,178 684,071 669,834
A w R IRRES Total equity attributable
BRREER to equity shareholder of
the company 516,016 532,929 531,058 686,951 672,714
FEERES Non-controlling interests (1,203) (974) (520) (748) (624)
HRRER TOTAL EQUITY 514,813 531,955 530,538 686,203 672,090
BREEFHE Net assets per share HK$1.79%8 7%  HK$1.8587 HK$1.84/8 7 HK$2.38H T HKS2.33B T
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